
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF 
 THE CITY OF BURNET 

 
Notice is hereby given that a Regular Council Meeting will be held by the governing 
body of the City of Burnet on the 13th day of July, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers, Burnet Municipal Airport, 2402 S. Water, Burnet, at which time the following 
subjects will be discussed, to-wit: 
 
This notice is posted pursuant to the Texas Government Code, Chapter §551-Open 
Meetings. 
 
The following subjects will be discussed, to-wit: 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
INVOCATION:  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:   
 
PLEDGE TO TEXAS FLAG: 
 
1.  SPECIAL REPORTS/RECOGNITION: 
 
 1.1) Development Services Report: M. Imrie 
  
2. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS:  

 
(All of the following items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be self-explanatory 
by the Council and will be enacted with one motion.  There will be no separate 
discussion of these items unless a Council Member, staff member or citizen requests 
removal of the item from the consent agenda for the purpose of discussion.  For 
removal of an item, a request must be made to the Council when the Consent Agenda 
is opened for Council Action.) 

 
2.1) Approval of the June 22, 2021 City Council Regular Meeting minutes 
 

3.  PUBLIC HEARING:  
 



3.1) Public Hearing: Public Hearing: City Council will receive testimony and 
comments from members of the public on an Ordinance amending city code chapter 
22 (entitled “building and building regulations”) by establishing a building permit fee 
table and revising the building additions and remodeling fee: H. Erkan, Jr. 

4. ACTION ITEMS: 

4.1) Discuss and consider action: SECOND AND FINAL READING OF AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET TEXAS 
AMENDING CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES CHAPTER 98 (ENTITLED 
“SUBDIVISIONS”) BY AMENDING THE NOTIFICATION AND HEARING 
PROCEDURES PRESCRIBED IN SECTION 98-22; PROVIDING FOR PENALTY; 
PROVIDING CUMULATIVE, REPEALER AND SEVERABILITY CLAUSES; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE: H. Erkan, Jr. 

4.2) Discuss and consider action: SECOND AND FINAL READING OF AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS, ADDING TO CODE OF 
ORDINANCE CHAPTER 2 (ENTITLED “ADMINISTRATION”), A NEW ARTICLE III, 
(ENTITLED “ADVISORY BODIES”); AND ADDING A NEW SECTION 2-42 
(ENTITLED “PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION”); PROVIDING FOR 
PENALTY; PROVIDING CUMULATIVE, REPEALER AND SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSES; PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE:  H. Erkan, Jr. 
 
4.3) Discuss and consider action: SECOND AND FINAL READING OF AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET TEXAS 
AMENDING CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES CHAPTER 98 (ENTITLED 
“SUBDIVISIONS”) BY ADDING A CONSTRUCTION PLAN INSPECTION FEE TO 
SECTION 98-23; PROVIDING FOR PENALTY; PROVIDING CUMULATIVE, 
REPEALER AND SEVERABILITY CLAUSES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE:  H. Erkan, Jr. 
 
4.4) Discuss and consider action: FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE 
AMENDING CITY CODE CHAPTER 22 (ENTITLED “BUILDING AND BUILDING 
REGULATIONS”) BY ESTABLISHING A BUILDING PERMIT FEE TABLE AND 
REVISING THE BUILDING ADDITIONS AND REMODELING FEE; PROVIDING 
FOR PENALTY; PROVIDING CUMULATIVE, REPEALER AND SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE:  H. Erkan, Jr. 
 
4.5) Discuss and consider action: Appointment of Burnet Municipal  Airport Advisory 
Board Members: K. Dix 
 
4.6) Discuss and consider action: Burnet Historic Preservation Board appointment: 
K. Dix 

 



4.7) Discuss and consider action: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING DEFEASANCE 
AND REDEMPTION OF CERTAIN OF THE CITY'S OUTSTANDING OBLIGATIONS 
AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS: D. Vaughn 

4.8) Discuss and consider action: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS, AMENDING SECTION 8.12 MILITARY LEAVE, 
OF THE PERSONNEL POLICY MANUAL BY UPDATING AND CLARIFYING 
POLICY REQUIREMENTS: K. Sames 

4.9) Discuss and consider action: Transfer of 179D Tax Deduction for the Burnet 
Police Department Facility: D. Vaughn 

4.10) Discuss and consider action: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
BURNET TEXAS APPROVING A FINANCING USE AND SALES TAX 
AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF BURNET; AND ENACTING OTHER 
PROCEDURES AND PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE PURPOSES OF THIS 
RESOLUTION: D. Vaughn 
 
4.11) Discuss and consider action: Approval and authorization for the City Manager 
to execute a renewal contract with Spectrum Enterprise for fiber-based ethernet 
service: D. Vaughn 
 
4.12) Discuss and consider action:  A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS, SELECTING THE FIRM SEAUX & PIERCE TO BE 
THE CITY HALL PROJECT ARCHITECT AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE A CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
FOR FINAL CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL: D. Vaughn 

5.  REQUESTS FROM COUNCIL FOR FUTURE REPORTS: In accordance with 
Resolution R2020-28 councilmembers may request the City Manager to prepare and 
present future report on matters of public interest.           

6. ADJOURN:  
                 Dated this the 8th day of July, 2021 
 

           CITY OF BURNET 
CRISTA GOBLE BROMLEY, MAYOR 

 
I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that the above NOTICE OF MEETING of 
the governing body of the above named City, BURNET, is a true and correct copy of 
said NOTICE and that I posted a true and correct copy of said NOTICE on the bulletin 
board, in the City Hall of said City, BURNET, TEXAS, a place convenient and readily 
accessible to the general public at all times, and said NOTICE was posted on July 8, 
2021, and remained posted continuously for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled 
time of said Meeting. 
 



 
 

                                                      _____________________________________ 
                                                      Kelly Dix, City Secretary 
 

 
NOTICE OF ASSISTANCE AT THE PUBLIC MEETINGS: 
The City Council Chamber is wheelchair accessible. Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who may need 
auxiliary aids or services, such as interpreters for persons who are deaf or hearing impaired, readers, or large print, are requested to 
contact the City Secretary’s office (512.756.6093) at least two working days prior to the meeting. Requests for information may be 
faxed to the City Secretary at 512.756.8560. 
 
RIGHT TO ENTER INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
The City Council for the City of Burnet reserves the right to adjourn into executive session at any time during the course of this 
meeting to discuss any of the matters listed above, as authorized by Texas Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultation with 
Attorney), 551.072 (Deliberations about Real Property), 551.073 (Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel 
Matters), 551.076 (Deliberations about Security Devices) and 551.087 (Economic Development). 



Development 
Services 
Monthly 
Report- June 
2021
J U LY  13 ,  2 0 21



Residential Permits 



New Residential Permits 
May-2021 June-2021

4 permits 20 permits 

- This increase is attributed to the start of construction in the Villages of Westfall Phase 2 as well as 
permits issued in Rancho Viejo and The Woodlands. 

- $49,070.25 collected in permit fees, utility connection fees and impact fees



Other Residential Permits 
Permit Type Number issued Fees Collected 

Accessory Structure 2 $30.00

Electrical 3 $75.00

Irrigation 9 $443.00

OSSF 1 $500.00

Plumbing 2 $50.00

Residential Remodel 32 $900.00

Right of Way 1 $250.00

Total Fees Collected for 
Other Permits: 
$2398.00



Commercial Permits



Commercial Permits
May 2021 June 2021

1 Permit Issued 6 Permits Issued 

$25.00 collected in permit fees $596.75 collected in permit fees



Developments 
- Vi l lages At Westfal l  

- Ranches At Delaware Creek Phase 2



Villages of 
Westfall  
- Final Plat approved 

- 29 Lots 

- Construction on streets has 
started. 

- 16 building permits issued as of 
06/30/21



Delaware 
Springs 
Section 24

- Construction Plans have been 
reviewed and approved. 

- Total of 37 additional lots 



Code Enforcement 



Code Enforcement Activity
May 2021 June 2021

Debris 15 Bushes Blocking View 1
Junked Vehicles 3 Debris 14
Overgrown Grass 17 Improperly Parked RV 1

International Property 
Maintenance Code 
Violation 

2

Overgrown Grass 16



Questions 



STATE OF TEXAS  {}       
COUNTY OF BURNET {}    
CITY OF BURNET  {} 
 
On this the 22nd day of June, 2021, the City Council of the City of Burnet convened in Regular Session, at 6:00 
p.m. at the Council Chambers, Burnet Municipal Airport, 2402 S. Water Street, Burnet, TX thereof with the 
following members present, to-wit: 
Mayor     Crista Goble Bromley  
Council Members Philip Thurman, Ricky Langley, Danny Lester, Joyce Laudenschlager 
Absent Mary Jane Shanes, Cindia Talamantez    
City Manager   David Vaughn 
City Secretary   Kelly Dix 
Guests: Patricia Langford, Alan Burdell, Mark Ingram, Brian Lee, Tony Nash, Mark Miller, Kelli Sames, 
Adrienne Field, Leslie Kimbler, Wade Langley, Alan Snider Dan Case 
Call to Order: Mayor Bromley called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
INVOCATION:  Led by Mayor Bromley 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  
PLEDGE TO TEXAS FLAG: Pledges led by Council Member Laudenschlager 
SPECIAL REPORTS/RECOGNITION: 
May 2021 Financial Report: P. Langford: Director of Finance Patricia Langford presented the May 2021 Financial 
report.  Ms. Langford reviewed revenues and expenses and forecasted budget projections for all funds. Overall, 
the year to date financials are tracking well with budget. 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS:  
(All of the following items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be self-explanatory by the Council and will be 
enacted with one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Council Member, staff member 
or citizen requests removal of the item from the consent agenda for the purpose of discussion. For removal of an item, 
a request must be made to the Council when the Consent Agenda is opened for Council Action.) 
Approval of the June 8, 2021 City Council Regular Meeting minutes: 
Approval of the June 11, 2021 City Council Special Meeting minutes: Council Member Danny Lester moved to 
approve the consent agenda as presented.  Council Member Joyce Laudenschlager seconded. The motion carried 
unanimously. 
PUBLIC HEARING:  
Public Hearing: City Council will receive testimony and comments from members of the public on an Ordinance 
amending city code chapter 98 (entitled “subdivisions”) by amending the notification and hearing procedures 
prescribed in section 98-22: H. Erkan, Jr.: Mayor Bromley opened the public hearing and asked if anyone was 
interested in speaking, if so to approach the podium. There being no one wishing to speak, Mayor Bromley closed the 
public hearing. 
Public Hearing: City Council will receive testimony and comments from members of the public on an Ordinance  
amending city code of ordinances chapter 98 (entitled “subdivisions”) by adding a construction plan inspection 
fee to section 98-23:  H. Erkan, Jr.: Mayor Bromley opened the public hearing and asked if anyone was interested in 
speaking, if so to approach the podium.  Wade Langley requested clarification from presenter Assistant City Manager 
Habib Erkan, Jr. pertaining to the engineer verifying the basis of the fee.  Mr. Erkan provided the information 
requested. There being no one else wishing to speak, Mayor Bromley closed the public hearing. 
ACTION ITEMS: 
Discuss and consider action: SECOND AND FINAL READING AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF BURNET, TEXAS, AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2021-01 AND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF 
THE CITY BY ASSIGNING THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS 608 BUCHANAN DR (LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION: LOT NO. NINE-B (9-B), A SHORT FORM REPLAT OF LOT 9B, 9C, & 9D, BEING A 
REPLAT OF LOT 9A, HAMILTON CREEEK DR) WITH MEDIUM COMMERCIAL – DISTRICT “C-2” 
ZONING CLASSIFICATION; PROVIDING A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE: L. Kimbler: Council Member Danny Lester moved to 
approve and adopt Ordinance No. 2021-20 as presented.  Council Member Philip Thurman seconded.  The motion 



carried unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: Proposed contract with Burnet County for 2021/2022 Election Services: K. Dix: 
Council Member Philip Thurman moved to approve the 2021/2022 Election Services Contract with Burnet County as 
presented.  Council Member Joyce Laudenschlager seconded. The motion carried unanimously.  
Discuss and consider action: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF BURNET, TEXAS, 
EXPRESSING OFFICIAL INTENT TO REIMBURSE CERTAIN EXPENDITURES OF THE CITY OF 
BURNET, TEXAS: D. Vaughn: Council Member Danny Lester moved to approve Resolution No. R2021-31 as 
presented.  Council Member Ricky Langley seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET, 
TEXAS, APPROVING THE “FINAL PLAT” OF WESTFALL VILLAGE, PHASE TWO, A PROPOSED 29-
LOT RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 7.61 ACRES; AND 
ACCEPTING A LETTER OF CREDIT ASSURING COMPLETION OF SUBDIVISION INFRASTRUCTURE: 
L. Kimbler: Council Member Danny Lester moved to approve Resolution No. R2021-32 as presented.  Council 
Member Philip Thurman seconded.  Mayor Bromley stated for the record that Council Member Ricky Langley 
filed a Conflict of Interest Affidavit with the City Secretary and abstained from the vote. The motion carried with 
a vote of four in favor, two absent and one abstention. 
Discuss and consider action: Appointment of Council Members to serve on the City Hall Building Committee: 
D. Vaughn: Council Member Danny Lester moved to appoint Council Members Philip Thurman, Rickey Langley, 
and Mayor Bromley to the City Hall Building Committee.  Council Member Philip Thurman seconded. The 
motion carried unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: Direction to staff regarding the creation a technical advisory committee for review 
of the city’s development codes: P. Thurman: Council Member Danny Lester made a motion directing staff to 
execute a process to create a technical advisory committee and to reach out to stakeholders for opinions to assist 
with creating the process. Council Member Philip Thurman seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BURNET TEXAS AMENDING CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES CHAPTER 98 (ENTITLED 
“SUBDIVISIONS”) BY AMENDING THE NOTIFICATION AND HEARING PROCEDURES PRESCRIBED 
IN SECTION 98-22; PROVIDING FOR PENALTY; PROVIDING CUMULATIVE, REPEALER AND 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE: H. Erkan, Jr.: Council Member 
Danny Lester moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 2021-21 as presented.  Council Member Ricky 
Langley seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS, 
ADDING TO CODE OF ORDINANCE CHAPTER 2 (ENTITLED “ADMINISTRATION”), A NEW ARTICLE 
III, (ENTITLED “ADVISORY BODIES”); AND ADDING A NEW SECTION 2-42 (ENTITLED “PLANNING 
AND ZONING COMMISSION”); PROVIDING FOR PENALTY; PROVIDING CUMULATIVE, REPEALER 
AND SEVERABILITY CLAUSES; PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE:  H. Erkan, Jr.: Council Member Danny Lester moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 2021-
22 as presented.  Council Member Joyce Laudenschlager seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BURNET TEXAS AMENDING CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES CHAPTER 98 (ENTITLED 
“SUBDIVISIONS”) BY ADDING A CONSTRUCTION PLAN INSPECTION FEE TO SECTION 98-23 ; 
PROVIDING FOR PENALTY; PROVIDING CUMULATIVE, REPEALER AND SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE:  H. Erkan, Jr.: Council Member Ricky Langley moved 
to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 2021-23 as presented.  Council Member Philip Thurman seconded. 
Mayor Bromley called for a roll vote. Council Members Thurman, Laudenschlager, Langley and Mayor Bromley 
voted in favor.  Council Member Lester was opposed. Council Members Shanes and Talamantez were absent. 
The motion carried with four in favor, one opposed and two absent. 
Discuss and consider action: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET, 
TEXAS, ACCEPTING THE RESIGNATION OF THE MUNICIPAL COURT PRESIDING JUDGE, 
EFFECTIVE JUNE 30, 2021, AND DIRECTING THE CITY SECRETARY TO PREPARE AND PUBLISH A 
REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS FOR A NEW MUNICIPAL COURT PRESIDING JUDGE: H. Erkan, Jr.: 
Council Member Philip Thurman moved to approve Resolution No. R2021-33 as presented.  Council Member 



Ricky Langley seconded. The motion carried unanimously accepting the resignation of Municipal Court Judge 
Peggy Simon 
Discuss and consider: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS, 
ASSIGNING A MUNICIPAL COURT ASSOCIATE JUDGE TO TEMPORARILY ACT IN THE PLACE OF 
THE MUNICIPAL COURT PRESIDING JUDGE UNTIL A NEW MUNICIPAL COURT PRESIDING JUDGE 
IS APPOINTED: H. Erkan, Jr.: Council Member Danny Lester moved to approve Resolution No. R2021-34 as 
presented and name Tamara Tinney as the Temporary Municipal Court Judge.  Council Member Joyce 
Laudenschlager seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: Action to direct staff to proceed in making improvements to streets within the 
Woodlands Subdivision: D. Vaughn: Council Member Joyce Laudenschlager made a motion directing staff to 
proceed with street improvements within the Woodlands Subdivision as presented. Council Member Philip 
Thurman seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 
REQUESTS FROM COUNCIL FOR FUTURE REPORTS: In accordance with Resolution R2020-28 councilmembers 
may request the City Manager to prepare and present future report on matters of public interest: None.  
ADJOURN: There being no further business a motion to adjourn was made by Council Member Joyce Laudenschlager 
at 7:14 p.m., seconded by Council Member Danny Lester. The motion carried unanimously. 
.     
               
          
          ___________________________ 
          Crista Goble Bromley, Mayor   
 
ATTEST:  
 
     
_______________________ 
Kelly Dix, City Secretary  



 

 
Development Services 

 

ITEM 3.1 
 
Habib Erkan Jr. 
Assistant City Manager 
512-715-3201 
herkan@cityofburnet.com 

 
Public Hearing Brief 

 
Meeting Date: July 13, 2021 
 
Public Hearing: Public hearing: City Council will receive testimony and comments from 

members of the public on an Ordinance amending city code chapter 22 
(entitled “building and building regulations”) by establishing a building 
permit fee table and revising the building additions and remodeling fee: 
H. Erkan, Jr. 

 
Background: This ordinance addresses two issues.  The establishment of a uniform 

fee table and a state law compliance issue. 
 

The compliance issue is regarding the 86th legislative session’s 
approval of HB 852, which was codified as Texas Local Government 
Code Sec. 214.907.  The section prohibits municipalities from basing 
building permit fees on the value of a residential dwelling or the cost of 
constructing or improving the dwelling.  Moreover, the section prohibits 
municipalities from inquiring about the value or costs of constructing or 
improving a residential dwelling as a condition of approving a building 
permit.   

 
The only city permit fee not in compliance with Sec. 214.907 is 
residential remodeling.   Currently, the cost of permit table states the 
permit fee for: “additions, remodeling, etc., is $5.00, per $1000.00 of 
construction costs.”  As this fee is prohibited as to residential permits, 
the development services department is only charging the minimum 
($25.00) permit fee for such applications. 

  
Information: This ordinance establishes a new Article XXI (entitled “Fee Schedule”).  

Article XXI lists all Chapter 22 building permit fees in one table.  This 
will allow for easier annual updates of fees each fiscal year. 

 
  Additionally, this ordinance will allow collection of more than the 

minimum begin collecting more than the minimum fee for residential 
remodeling permit applications. 

 
Fiscal Impact: It is anticipated this ordinance will have a small positive fiscal impact, 

as residential remodeling permit fee revenue increases.  
  
Recommendation: Open the public hearing. 
 



 

 

 

 
Development Services 

 

ITEM 4.1 
 
Habib Erkan Jr. 
Assistant City Manager 
512-715-3201 
herkan@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
Meeting Date: July 13, 2021 

Agenda Item: Discuss and Consider: SECOND AND FINAL READING OF AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET 
TEXAS AMENDING CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES CHAPTER 98 
(ENTITLED “SUBDIVISIONS”) BY AMENDING THE NOTIFICATION 
AND HEARING PROCEDURES PRESCRIBED IN SECTION 98-22; 
PROVIDING FOR PENALTY; PROVIDING CUMULATIVE, 
REPEALER AND SEVERABILITY CLAUSES; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE: H. Erkan, Jr. 

Background: The review and approval of subdivision plat applications are governed 
by Texas Local Government Code Chapter 212 and City Code Chapter 
98.  Chapter 212 prescribes strict timelines for the planning and zoning 
commission and city council to take action on administratively complete 
plat applications.  Additionally, chapter 212, in most cases does not 
impose any additional notice of the commission’s or council’s 
consideration and action on a plat application than is required under 
the Texas Open Meetings Act.  City code chapter 98 imposes public 
hearing and  notice of such public hearing not earlier than 30 days and 
not later than 15 days before consideration on a plat application.  This 
notice requirement both causes unnecessary delay for the plat 
application; and, makes it difficult for the city to comply with the chapter 
212 action deadlines.   

  
Information: This ordinance would align the city’s notice requirements for 

consideration of subdivision plats by the commission and council with 
the state requirements found in chapter 212.  It should be noted that 
unlike action on a zoning application, which is legislative in nature, 
action on a subdivision plat application is ministerial in nature, unless a 
variance is requested, and providing the additional public notice and 
providing for public hearings give the false impression that the 
commission and council have more discretion than state law allows. 

 



 

 There have been no changes to Ordinance 2021-21 since the first 
reading on June 22, 2021. 

 
Fiscal Impact: This amendment will have a positive financial impact in that there will 

no longer be an expense for publication of subdivision plat application 
public notices. 

  
Recommendation: Approve and adopt Ordinance No. 2021-21 as presented. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-21 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET 
TEXAS AMENDING CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES CHAPTER 98 
(ENTITLED “SUBDIVISIONS”) BY AMENDING THE NOTIFICATION AND 
HEARING PROCEDURES PRESCRIBED IN SECTION 98-22; PROVIDING 
FOR PENALTY; PROVIDING CUMULATIVE, REPEALER AND 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Chapter 212, City Code Chapter 
98 (entitled “Subdivisions”) was adopted to regulate the subdivision of land within the city’s 
corporate and extraterritorial jurisdiction to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the 
public; and 

WHEREAS, in Section 98-22 thereof city council has adopted procedures for the 
submission and disposition of preliminary plat applications; and    
 
WHEREAS, in order to facilitate efficient and effective process of plat applications city 
council deems it appropriate amend the plat application and notification process to conform 
with state law requirements; and 
 
WHEREAS, city council has conducted a public hearing allowing members of the public to 
provide testimony and comments on the proposed code amendment.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BURNET, TEXAS, THAT:  
 
Section one. Findings. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found 
to be true, and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Ordinance for all purposes and 
are adopted as a part of the judgment and findings of the Council. 

Section two.  Code Amendment.  The Code of Ordinances, Chapter 98 (entitled 
“Subdivision”) Section 98-22 (entitled “preliminary plats”) subsection (f) (entitled 
“notification”) is hereby amended by replacing the existing language with the language that 
follows: 
 

(f) Notification. 

(1) Except as provided in subsection (2), immediately below, notice of the 
commission’s consideration of a preliminary plat application or 
preliminary replat application shall comply with the Texas Open 
Meeting Act.  

(2) Notification of commission consideration of an application to replat 
property zoned within the preceding five years as single family/duplex 



 

residential shall comply with the public notice/hearing requirements of 
Texas Local Government Code Sec. 212.015.   

 
Section three.  Code Amendment.  The Code of Ordinances, Chapter 98 (entitled 
“Subdivision”) Section 98-22 (entitled “preliminary plats”) subsection (g) (entitled “approval”) 
is hereby amended by adding the language that is underlined (underlined) and deleting the 
language that is stricken (stricken) as follows: 
 

(g) Approval. The commission, after holding public hearings in accordance with city ordinances and 
codes, shall made a recommendation to the city council on the request for preliminary plat 
application. approval. The plat will be considered at the next regularly scheduled public hearing 
of the city council, but not earlier than five working days after the commission's hearing.  

(1) The planning and zoning commission' shall act within 30 days of the preliminary plat filing 
date to either recommend approval, denial or modification to the application. Failure of the 
commission to act within the 30 days shall be deemed an approval of the plat, except as 
otherwise agreed to by the developer. Plans that are disapproved as submitted may be 
resubmitted without charge within 60 days of disapproval with additional fees being 
assessed. The city council shall act within 30 days of the approval or inaction of the 
application by the commission. A plat is considered approved by the city council unless it is 
disapproved within that period.  

(2) Zoning of the tract, if applicable, that shall permit the uses proposed by the preliminary plat, 
or any zoning amendment necessary to permit the proposed uses shall have been adopted 
prior to or concurrently with the approval of the preliminary plat by the council.  

(3) Approval of the preliminary plat shall not constitute approval of the final plat but shall 
constitute a vesting of the right to develop under city ordinances, codes, and policies in effect 
on the date the requested permit is filed, provided that neither the preliminary plat nor any 
subsequent plat or permit has been, or is, allowed to expire.  

(4) The developer may elect to phase the subdivision project.  
(5) The developer should be aware that specific approvals from other agencies may be required.  
(6) Upon approval of the preliminary plat and all signatures having been executed, the 

developer shall furnish one Mylar reproducible copy of the approved plat to be kept on file 
at the city as public record.  

Penalty.  A violation of this ordinance is unlawful and subject to City Code of Ordinances 
Sec. 1-6 (entitled “general penalty”).   

Section four. Cumulative.  This ordinance shall be cumulative of all provisions of all 
ordinances and codes, or parts thereof, except where the provisions of this Ordinance are in 
direct conflict with the provisions of such Ordinances, in which event the more restrictive 
provision shall apply. 

Section five.  Repealer.  All ordinances and codes, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or 
inconsistent with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such 
conflict, and the provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the 
matters resolved herein. 

Section six.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to 
any person or circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance and 
the application of such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be 



 

valid, and the City hereby declares that this Ordinance would have been enacted without 
such invalid provision. 

Section seven. TOMA  Compliance.  It is officially found, determined, and declared that 
the meeting at which this Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of 
the time, place, and subject matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, 
including this Ordinance, was given, as required by Texas Government Code Chapter 551. 

Section eight.  Publication.  The publishers of the City Code are authorized to amend said 
Code to reflect the changes adopted herein and to correct typographical errors and to format 
and number paragraphs to conform to the existing Code. 

Section nine.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective upon the date of final 
adoption hereof and publication as required by law. 

Passed on first reading on the 22nd day of June 2021 
 
Passed, approved and adopted on the 13th day of July, 2021 
 
 
       CITY OF BURNET 
 

 
        

      Crista Goble Bromley, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Kelly Dix, City Secretary 

 



 

 

 

 
Development Services 

 

ITEM 4.2 
 
 
Habib Erkan Jr. 
Assistant City Manager 
512-715-3201 
herkan@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
 

Meeting Date: July 13, 2021 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss and Consider: SECOND AND FINAL READING OF AN 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS, ADDING TO 
CODE OF ORDINANCE CHAPTER 2 (ENTITLED 
“ADMINISTRATION”), A NEW ARTICLE III, (ENTITLED “ADVISORY 
BODIES”); AND ADDING A NEW SECTION 2-42 (ENTITLED 
“PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION”); PROVIDING FOR 
PENALTY; PROVIDING CUMULATIVE, REPEALER AND 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSES; PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE:  H. Erkan, Jr. 

 
Background: City council may establish and abolish appointed bodies, as may be 

mandated by state statute or other law, or as city council deems 
beneficial or necessary to serve the public good.  City council has 
established several boards and commissions to advise and assist in 
the governance of the city.  Each of the active boards and 
commissions, except the planning and zoning commission, are 
established by ordinance codified in the city code.  The planning and 
zoning commission is currently governed by bylaws.  All boards and 
commissions are governed by an uncodified Policies and Procedures 
for Advisory Boards and Commissions adopted by city council in 2015. 

 
Information: This ordinance codifies general advisory body rules related to the 

establishment of such bodies and terms of appointment of a body’s 
members.   In addition, this ordinance codifies specific rules relating to 
the planning and zoning commission and reduces the number of 
commissioners from seven to five.  

 
 There have been no changes to Ordinance 2021-22 since the first 

reading on June 22, 2021. 
 
 
 



 

Fiscal Impact: Passage of this ordinance will cause no fiscal impact. 
 
Recommendation: Approve and adopt Ordinance No. 2021-22 as presented. 
  



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-22 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS, ADDING TO CODE 
OF ORDINANCE CHAPTER 2 (ENTITLED “ADMINISTRATION”), A NEW 
ARTICLE III, (ENTITLED “ADVISORY BODIES”); AND ADDING A NEW 
SECTION 2-42 (ENTITLED “PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION”); 
PROVIDING FOR PENALTY; PROVIDING CUMULATIVE, REPEALER 
AND SEVERABILITY CLAUSES; PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, city council is imbued with the authority to establish such appointed bodies as 
it may deem necessary for the conduct of city business and management of municipal 
affairs; and  
 
WHEREAS, the purpose of this ordinance is to codify the general provisions for the 
establishment and operations of bodies appointed by council; and 
 
WHEREAS, a further purpose of this ordinance is to provide the public with easy reference 
to the advisory boards established by council; and 
 
WHEREAS, an additional purpose of this ordinance is to codify the establishment and 
functions of the planning and zoning commission. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BURNET, TEXAS:  
 
Section one. Code amendment.  City Code Chapter 2 (entitled “Administration”), is hereby 
amended by the adoption of a new Article III (entitled “Appointed bodies”) to read as follows: 

 
Article III. – Appointed bodies 
 
Section 2-41 Generally. 
 

(a) Authority.  Pursuant to the Charter and the laws of this state, City Council is vested with the 
authority to establish and abolish appointed bodies, as may be mandated by state statute or 
other law, or as City Council deems beneficial or necessary to serve the public good.  

 
(b) Purpose.  The purpose of this Article is to provide guidance generally as to the establishment, 

appointment of members, and operations of appointed bodies. The authority, functions and 
responsibilities of such appointed bodies shall be prescribed by separate ordinance, 
resolution, or order of City Council.   

 
(c) Scope. This article is applicable to all bodies appointed by city council, whether such body is 

designated as a board, commission, agency, bureau, committee or by other designation.   
 
(d) Establishment.  The authority, functions and responsibilities of such appointed bodies shall 

be established by city council ordinance, resolution, or order. In its sole prerogative, city 
council may abolish an appointed body; or modify or alter an appointed body’s authority, 



 

functions, and responsibilities.  In the event of a conflict between the ordinance, resolution, or 
order establishing an advisory body and this section the ordinance, resolution, or order 
establishing the advisory body shall prevail. 
 

(e) Term.  Members shall be appointed for two-year terms.  Members may be reappointed to an 
advisory body and may serve on two or more advisory bodies unless such appointments are 
prohibited by an incompatibility law. 
 

(f)  Appointments.  Appointments shall be made in June of each year.  Each advisory board 
positions shall be assigned a place number.  Even numbered places shall be appointed in 
even numbered years and odd numbered places shall be appointed in odd numbered years. 

 
(g) At will appointment.  Except as provided by state statute, members appointed to an appointed 

body serve at the pleasure of city council and a member may be removed by city council with 
or without cause. 

 
(h) Policies and Procedures for Advisory Boards and Commissions.  To the extent not in conflict 

with this article, qualifications, appointment, term, ethics requirement and meeting procedures 
shall comply with the Policies and Procedures for Advisory Boards and Commissions adopted 
by city council on August 4, 2015. 
 

(i) Rules of order.  Appointed bodies shall conduct business under rules of order adopted by the 
body and approved by city council.  

 
Section 2-42.  Planning and zoning commission. 
 

(a) Establishment.  In accordance with Texas Local Government Code Chapter 212, 
Subchapter A there is hereby established a Planning Commission.  In accordance with 
Texas Local Government Code Chapter 211, Subchapter A the members of the Planning 
Commission shall serve as the Zoning Commission. 

 
(b) Name.  This body is designated as the City of Burnet Planning and Zoning Commission 

and may be referred to simply as the commission. 
(c) Duties and authority.  The commission shall have those duties and authority prescribed 

in city code chapters 98 and 118. 
 
(d) Membership.  The commission shall consist of five members.  Three members shall 

constitute a quorum. 
 
(e) Officers.  Commission officers shall be the chairperson, vice chairperson and secretary. 

All officers must be appointed members of the commission except the secretary who may 
be a member of city staff. 
  
(1) The chairperson shall preside over all meetings, may appoint committees, and 

preside over such committees; certify all commission official documents and 
minutes; and act in the absence of the secretary. 

 
(2) The vice chairperson shall act in the absence of the chairperson, and if both the 

chairperson and secretary is absent, serve as the secretary. 
 
(3) The secretary shall cause a record of meeting attendance and minutes; provide 

notification of meetings to commission members, file official records and reports 



 

of the commission with the city secretary; and provide notification and 
publications of commission meetings as prescribed by law. 

 
(f)  Meetings.  The commission’s regular meetings shall occur the first Monday of each 

month.  The chairperson may call special meetings as may be required to comply with 
statutory plat approval timelines or address other emergency matters. 

 
Section 2-43 Zoning Board of Adjustment. 
 
The Zoning Board of Adjustment is established and governed by City Code Chapter 118, Article IV. 
 
Section 2-44 Historic Preservation Board of Directors. 
 
The Historic Preservation Board of Directors is established and governed by City Code Chapter 22,  Article 
X, Division 2. 
 
Section 2-45 Airport Zoning Board. 
 
The Airport Zoning Board is established and governed by City Code Chapter 18, Article I. 
 
Section 2-46 Economic Development Corporation Board of Directors. 
 
The  Economic Development Corporation Board of Directors Board is established and governed by June 
11, 2008 Articles of Incorporation and the Burnet Economic Development Corporation Bylaws. 
 
Section 2-47 Parks and Recreation Advisory Board. 
 
The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board is established and governed by City Code Chapter 74, Article 
II. 
 
Section 2-48 Board of Ethics. 
 
The Board of Ethics is established and governed by City Code Chapter 2, Article VII. 

 
Note to publisher:  Existing Chapter 2 Articles III through X are to be recodified follows: 
Article III – Officers is recodified as Article IV; Article IV – Records Management is recodified 
as Article V; Article V – Claims Against the City is recodified as Article VI; Article VI – 
Investment Policy is recodified as Article VII; Article VII – Code of Ethics is recodified as 
Article VIII; Article VIII – Annual Reports . . .is recodified as Article IX; Article IX – Capital 
Improvement Plan is recodified as Article X; and Article X – Lost Personal Property is 
recodified as Article XI. 
 
Section two.  Recitals.  The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to 
be true, and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Ordinance for all purposes and are 
adopted as a part of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 
 
Section three. Penalty.  A violation of this ordinance is unlawful and subject to City Code 
of Ordinances Sec. 1-6 (entitled “general penalty”).   
 



 

Section four. Cumulative.  This ordinance shall be cumulative of all provisions of all 
ordinances and codes, or parts thereof, except where the provisions of this Ordinance are in 
direct conflict with the provisions of such Ordinances, in which event Section 5, (entitled 
“Repealer”) shall be controlling. 
 
Section five. Repealer.  All ordinances and codes, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or 
inconsistent with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such 
conflict, and the provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the 
matters resolved herein. 
 
Section six.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to 
any person or circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance and 
the application of such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be 
valid, and the City hereby declares that this Ordinance would have been enacted without 
such invalid provision. 
 
Section seven. TOMA  Compliance.  It is officially found, determined, and declared 
that the meeting at which this Ordinance is adopted was conducted in compliance with the 
Texas Open Meeting Act. 
 
Section eight. Publication. The publishers of the City Code are authorized to amend 
said Code to reflect the changes adopted herein and to correct typographical errors and to 
format and number paragraphs to conform to the existing Code. 
 
Section nine. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be effective upon the date of final 
adoption hereof and publication as required by law. 
 
Passed on first reading on the 22nd day of June, 2021 
 
Passed, approved, and adopted on the 13th day of July, 2021 
 
 
       CITY OF BURNET 
 

 
  __________________________   

      Crista Goble Bromley, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________      
Kelly Dix, City Secretary 



 

 

 

 
Development Services 

 

ITEM 4.3 
 
 
Habib Erkan Jr. 
Assistant City Manager 
512-715-3201 
herkan@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
 

Meeting Date: July 13, 2021 
 

Agenda Item: Discuss and consider action: SECOND AND FINAL READING OF AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET 
TEXAS AMENDING CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES CHAPTER 98 
(ENTITLED “SUBDIVISIONS”) BY ADDING A CONSTRUCTION 
PLAN INSPECTION FEE TO SECTION 98-23; PROVIDING FOR 
PENALTY; PROVIDING CUMULATIVE, REPEALER AND 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE:  
H. Erkan, Jr. 

 
Background: As council is aware the subdivision of land into buildable commercial 

and residential lots in many cases involves the dedication of street, 
water, sewer and electric infrastructure for public maintenance and 
use.   To assure the infrastructure to be dedicated is designed correctly 
council adopted the city’s construction manual. To assure the 
infrastructure is constructed in accordance with the approved 
designed, the public works department, in coordination with the city 
engineer, make periodic onsite inspections of the work site. 

 
Information: This ordinance would allow the city to recoup some of the costs 

associated with the aforementioned onsite inspections.  The proposed 
fee would be 3.0% of the estimated construction cost for the roads, 
water, sewer, and drainage facilities, according to calculations by the 
project engineer and verified by the city engineer. 

 
 The chart below was prepared by our city engineer and compares 

development fees charged by Austin, Buda, Georgetown, Hutto, Kyle, 
Leander, Marble Falls, Round Rock, and San Marcus.  Burnet is the 
only city in the list not charging an infrastructure inspection fee and the 
average fee charged is 3%. 

  



 

 

City Water Impact* Wastewater 
Impact* 

Total Impact 
Fees* Subdivision Inspection Fees 

 

Austin $4,700.00  $2,500.00  $7,200.00  $201.76 per hour for ~5% of 
OPC  

Buda $2,187.00  $2,531.00  $4,718.00  $500 + 3.5% of OPC  
Georgetown $4,616.31  $2,077.71  $6,694.02  $1,000/Lot** ~ 3% of OPC  

Hutto $3,625.00  $2,128.00  $5,753.00  3% of OPC  
Kyle $3,535.00  $2,826.00  $6,361.00  2% of OPC  

Leander $3,880.00  $1,615.00  $5,495.00  3.5% of OPC  

Marble Falls $2,761.00  $3,293.00  $6,054.00  
$500 + $70 per acre up to 

100 acres + $50 per acre for 
each acre over 100 acres  

Round Rock $4,234.00  $1,799.00  $6,033.00  1.5% of OPC  
San Marcos $3,801.00  $2,684.00  $6,485.00  $2,378 plus $50 per acre  

           
Average $3,704.37  $2,383.75  $6,088.11   ~3% of OPC   

Burnet -Current $1,084.50  $1,173.00  $2,257.50  $0   
Difference $2,619.87  $1,210.75  $3,830.61  ~3% of OPC  

      
 

There have been no changes to the first reading of Ordinance 
2021-23 since the first reading on June 22, 2021. 

Fiscal Impact: Passage of this ordinance will have a positive fiscal impact as it 
will allow city inspection costs to be recouped from the applicant 
requesting infrastructure dedication.  

 
Recommendation: Approve and adopt Ordinance 2021-23 as presented. 

 

 
 
 
 

  



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-23 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET 
TEXAS AMENDING CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES CHAPTER 98 
(ENTITLED “SUBDIVISIONS”) BY ADDING A CONSTRUCTION PLAN 
INSPECTION FEE TO SECTION 98-23 ; PROVIDING FOR PENALTY; 
PROVIDING CUMULATIVE, REPEALER AND SEVERABILITY CLAUSES; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Chapter 212, City Code Chapter 
98 (entitled “Subdivisions”) was adopted to regulate the subdivision of land within the city’s 
corporate and extraterritorial jurisdiction to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the 
public; and 

WHEREAS, in Section 98-23 thereof city council has adopted procedures for the 
submission of construction plans for infrastructure supporting a subdivision; and    
 
WHEREAS, city council has determined that it is of great importance to the proper 
installation of the infrastructure shown on the construction plans for there to be city 
inspections of such installation.  
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to impose a fee to adequately cover the costs of such 
inspections; and 
 
WHEREAS, city council has conducted a public hearing allowing members of the public to 
provide testimony and comments on the proposed code amendment.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BURNET, TEXAS, THAT:  
 
Section one. Findings. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found 
to be true, and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Ordinance for all purposes and 
are adopted as a part of the judgment and findings of the Council. 

Section two.  Amendment.  The Code of Ordinances, Chapter 98 (entitled “Subdivision”) 
Section 98-23 (entitled “construction plans”) is hereby amended by adding the language 
that is underlined (underlined) to subsection 9-23(d)(4) as follows: 
 

(d) Procedure. After all necessary approvals of the preliminary plat have been 
granted, construction plans, together with a completed application form, 
administrative fees, and any other federal, state or local permits required prior to 
construction (L.C.R.A. NPS permit, SWPPP, etc.) shall be submitted to the city 
engineer for approval subject to the following:  



 

(1) Construction plans may be submitted for review and approval simultaneously 
with a final plat, provided however that the final plat shall not be approved until 
the construction plans have been approved. If the construction plans and the 
final plat are to be reviewed simultaneously, a complete application for 
construction plans and a complete application for final plat must be submitted 
to the city simultaneously.  

(2) City staff shall review all construction plan submittals for administrative 
completeness at the time of application. If in the judgment of the city, the 
construction plan submittal substantially fails to meet the minimal 
informational requirements as outlined above, it will not be accepted for review 
and the construction plan shall be deemed rejected. The developer shall have 
up to 60 days from the date the construction plan is deemed denied to remedy 
all deficiencies or the construction plan shall be rejected for filing and new 
filing fees will be required for subsequent submittals.  

(3) The city engineer shall review the construction plans to insure compliance with 
this chapter, and other applicable city ordinances, codes, standards and 
specifications, and good engineering practices.  

(4) Upon approval of the construction plans, the applicant shall pay an inspection 
fee in the amount of 3.0% of the estimated construction cost for the roads, 
water, sewer and drainage facilities, according to calculations by a Registered 
Professional Engineer. These calculations must be approved by the City 
Engineer. 
 

Section three. Penalty.  A violation of this ordinance is unlawful and subject to City Code 
of Ordinances Sec. 1-6 (entitled “general penalty”).   

Section four. Cumulative.  This ordinance shall be cumulative of all provisions of all 
ordinances and codes, or parts thereof, except where the provisions of this Ordinance are in 
direct conflict with the provisions of such Ordinances, in which event the more restrictive 
provision shall apply. 

Section five.  Repealer.  All ordinances and codes, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or 
inconsistent with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such 
conflict, and the provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the 
matters resolved herein. 

Section six.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to 
any person or circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance and 
the application of such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be 
valid, and the City hereby declares that this Ordinance would have been enacted without 
such invalid provision. 



 

Section seven. TOMA  Compliance.  It is officially found, determined, and declared that 
the meeting at which this Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of 
the time, place, and subject matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, 
including this Ordinance, was given, as required by Texas Government Code Chapter 551. 

Section eight.  Publication.  The publishers of the City Code are authorized to amend said 
Code to reflect the changes adopted herein and to correct typographical errors and to format 
and number paragraphs to conform to the existing Code. 

Section nine.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective upon the date of final 
adoption hereof and publication as required by law. 

 
Passed on first reading on the 22nd day of June 2021 
 
Passed, approved and adopted on the 13th day of May, 2021 
 
 
       CITY OF BURNET 
 

 
        

      Crista Goble Bromley, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Kelly Dix, City Secretary 

 



 

 

 

 
Development Services 

 

ITEM 4.4 
 
 
Habib Erkan Jr. 
Assistant City Manager 
512-715-3201 
herkan@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
Meeting Date: July 13, 2021 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss and consider action: FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE 

AMENDING CITY CODE CHAPTER 22 (ENTITLED “BUILDING AND 
BUILDING REGULATIONS”) BY ESTABLISHING A BUILDING PERMIT 
FEE TABLE AND REVISING THE BUILDING ADDITIONS AND 
REMODELING FEE; PROVIDING FOR PENALTY; PROVIDING 
CUMULATIVE, REPEALER AND SEVERABILITY CLAUSES; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE:  H. Erkan, Jr. 

 
Background: This ordinance addresses two issues.  The establishment of a uniform fee 

table and a state law compliance issue. 
 

The compliance issue is regarding the 86th legislative session’s approval of 
HB 852, which was codified as Texas Local Government Code Sec. 
214.907.  The section prohibits municipalities from basing building permit 
fees on the value of a residential dwelling or the cost of constructing or 
improving the dwelling.  Moreover, the section prohibits municipalities from 
inquiring about the value or costs of constructing or improving a residential 
dwelling as a condition of approving a building permit.   

 
The only city permit fee not in compliance with Sec. 214.907 is residential 
remodeling.   Currently, the cost of permit table states the permit fee for: 
“additions, remodeling, etc., is $5.00, per $1000.00 of construction costs.”  
As this fee is prohibited as to residential permits, the development services 
department is only charging the minimum ($25.00) permit fee for such 
applications. 

  
Information: This ordinance establishes a new Article XXI (entitled “Fee Schedule”).  

Article XXI lists all Chapter 22 building permit fees in one table.  This will 
allow for easier annual updates of fees each fiscal year. 

 
 Additionally, this ordinance will allow collection of more than the minimum 

begin collecting more than the minimum fee for residential remodeling 
permit applications. 

 
Fiscal Impact: It is anticipated this ordinance will have a small positive fiscal impact, as 

residential remodeling permit fee revenue increases.  
  
Recommendation: Pass the first reading of Ordinance No. 2021-24, as presented. 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-24 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF BURNET, TEXAS 
AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 22 (ENTITLED 
“BUILDING AND BUILDING REGULATIONS”) FOR THE PURPOSES OF 
ESTABLISHING A BUILDING PERMIT FEE TABLE AND REVISING THE 
BUILDING ADDITIONS AND REMODELING FEE; PROVIDING FOR 
PENALTY; PROVIDING CUMULATIVE, REPEALER AND 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSES; PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

Whereas, pursuant to the city’s inherent powers as a home rule municipality, the laws 
and constitution of this state, including Texas Local Government Code Chapter 214, city 
council has adopted national building, fire, electrical, plumbing, mechanical and similar 
codes within Chapter 22 of the City Code; and 
Whereas, city council desires to amend Chapter 22 to revise the permit fee for 
construction additions and remodeling to be calculated on a square footage basis; and 
  
Whereas, city council desires to amend Chapter 22 to place all fees authorized by said 
chapter in one fee schedule. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BURNET, TEXAS:  
 
Section One.  Fee Revision.  The permit fee for building additions and remodeling is 
hereby revised to eight cents per square foot as reflected in section eight of this 
ordinance. 
Section two.  Code Amendment.  City Code Chapter 22 (entitled “buildings and building 
Regulations”) Article III (entitled “Building Code”) Section 22-55 (entitled “amendments to 
the building codes”) is hereby amended by revising subsection (c) (entitled “building 
permit fee”) to read as follows: 

(c) Building permit fee. The table of the International Building Code entitled, "Building 
Permit Fees" is hereby replaced by Article XXI (entitled “Fee Schedule”) Table One 
(entitled “Building Permit Fees”).  

Section three.  Code Amendment.  City Code Chapter 22 (entitled “buildings and 
building regulations”) Article VI (entitled “plumbing code”) Section 22-129 (entitled 
“plumbing permit fees”) is hereby amended by revising the section to read as follows: 

Sec. 22-129. Plumbing permit fees. 
All applications for permits required under this Article shall be made on such form as 
provided by the Building Official with payment of permit fees as stated in Article XXI 
(entitled “Fee Schedule”) Table Two (entitled “Plumbing Permit Fees”). 



 

Section four.  Code Amendment.  City Code Chapter 22 (entitled “buildings and 
building regulations”) Article VII (entitled “mechanical code”) Section 22-152 (entitled 
“mechanical permit fees”) is hereby amended by revising the section to read as follows: 

Sec. 22-152. Mechanical permit fee. 
Table 1-A of the Uniform Mechanical Code entitled "Mechanical Permit Fees" is hereby 
replaced by Article XXI (entitled “Fee Schedule”) Table Three (entitled “Mechanical Permit 
Fees”).  

Section five.  Code Amendment.  City Code Chapter 22 (entitled “buildings and building 
regulations”) Article VIII (entitled “Miscellaneous Codes”) Section 22-160 (entitled 
“International Fire Code”) is hereby amended by revising subsection (a)(2) to read as 
follows: 

(2) Section 105.1.2 Types of Permits.   All applications for permits required under this 
Article shall be made on such form as provided by the Building Official with 
payment of permit fees as stated in Article XXI (entitled “Fee Schedule”) Table 
Four (entitled “Fire Code Permit Fee Schedule”). 

Section six.  Code Amendment.  City Code Chapter 22 (entitled “Buildings and Building 
Regulations”) Article VIII (entitled “Miscellaneous Codes”) Section 22-160 (entitled 
“International Fire Code”) is hereby amended by revising subsection (a)(15) to read as 
follows: 

(15) 307.9 Permit fee and duration.  
307.0 Permit fee and duration is hereby amended as provide in Article XXI 
(entitled “Fee Schedule”) Table Five (entitled “Outdoor Burning and Fireworks 
Fees”). 

Section seven.  Code Amendment.  City Code Chapter 22 (entitled “Buildings and 
Building Regulations”) Article VIII (entitled “Miscellaneous Codes”) Section 22-160 
(entitled “International Fire Code”) is hereby amended by revising subsection (a)(22) by 
adding the language that is underlined (underlined) as follows: 

(22) Section 5608.2 Permit application.  
Section 5608.2 Permit application is hereby amended as follows:  

Any person, company or other entity desiring to ignite fireworks in a controlled public display, 
use pyrotechnic before a proximate audience or use flame effects before an audience must file 
an application, with the application fee stated as provide in Article XXI (entitled “Fee Schedule”) 
Table Five (entitled “Outdoor Burning and Fireworks Fees”), with the city secretary at least 30 
days prior to the proposed display along with. The applicant must:  

1. Meet all requirements for the same as outlined in Title 28. Insurance; Part 1, 
Texas Department of Insurance; Chapter 34, State Fire Marshal; Subchapter H, 
Storage and sale of fireworks; 

2. Provide state required documentation to the city for review and final approval of 
the event, including recommendations or proposals for any changes as required. 

3. The Fire Marshal, with approval from the City Manager, may issue a permit for 
public fireworks displays; use of pyrotechnics before a proximate audience 
and/or use of flame effects before an audience. The event permitted may only 
be ignited as provided in the application and any restrictions added in the permit. 
At the time of the event, the Fire Marshal may require that the fire department be 
on standby at the site. As a requirement of the permit, the Permitee may be 

https://library.municode.com/tx/burnet/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_CH34CE
https://library.municode.com/tx/burnet/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_CH34CE


 

charged the reasonable costs for the fire department being on standby status for 
the display. 

5608.2.1 The city, its agents, assigns and contractors may sponsor city fireworks displays with 
the express authorization of a majority vote of the city council. The person(s), company or 
entity contracted to operate the display, or use pyrotechnics or flames before an audience 
shall meet all state requirements. The Fire Marshal shall be notified of all city fireworks displays 
and shall review the proposed ignition site, the proposed trajectory and landing site for all 
fireworks displays and make recommendations or proposals for any changes. City sponsored 
fireworks, pyrotechnic and/or flame events shall be exempt from the local permit requirements. 
The Fire Marshal shall be notified of the location for storage of fireworks. 

5608.2.2 The city reserves the right to deny any application. The city reserves the right, with 
or without notice, to revoke any fireworks permit. All permits shall expire, and no longer be 
valid, immediately after the fireworks, pyrotechnic or flame event permitted was to occur. 

Section eight.  Code Amendment.  City Code Chapter 22 (entitled “buildings and 
building regulations”) Article IX (entitled “electrical code”) Section 22-187 (entitled “fees 
and reinspection”) is hereby amended by revising subsection (b) (entitled “schedule of 
fees”) to read as follows: 
 

(b) Schedule of fees. All fees shall be paid to the city by each person doing any 
electrical work for which such fees are required in subsection (a) of this section. 
The permit and inspection fees provided in this subsection shall be paid to the city 
before the issuance of a permit and before any work is started. The fees shall be 
as  stated in Article XXI (entitled “Fee Schedule”) Table Four (entitled “Fire Code 
Permit Fee Schedule”). 

 
Section eight.  Code Amendment.  City Code Chapter 22 (entitled “Buildings and 
Building Regulations”) is hereby amended by the adoption of a new Article XXI (entitled 
“fee schedule”) and recodifying and restating fees set out in Articles I through X in Article 
XXI as attached hereto and incorporated herein.  
 
Section nine. Findings. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby 
found to be true, and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Ordinance for all 
purposes and are adopted as a part of the judgment and findings of the Council. 

Section ten. Penalty.  A violation of this ordinance is unlawful and subject to City Code 
of Ordinances Sec. 1-6 (entitled “general penalty”).   

Section eleven. Cumulative.  This ordinance shall be cumulative of all provisions of all 
ordinances and codes, or parts thereof, except where the provisions of this Ordinance are 
in direct conflict with the provisions of such Ordinances, in which event Section 5, (entitled 
“Repealer”) shall be controlling. 

Section twelve. Repealer.  All ordinances and codes, or parts thereof, which are in 
conflict or inconsistent with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the 
extent of such conflict, and the provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling 
as to the matters resolved herein. 



 

Section thirteen.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or the application 
thereof to any person or circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this 
Ordinance and the application of such provision to other persons and circumstances shall 
nevertheless be valid, and the City hereby declares that this Ordinance would have been 
enacted without such invalid provision. 

Section fourteen. TOMA  Compliance.  It is officially found, determined, and declared 
that the meeting at which this Ordinance is adopted was conducted in compliance with 
the Texas Open Meeting Act as modified by Executive Orders of the Governor of the 
State of Texas in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Section fifteen. Publication. The publishers of the City Code are authorized to 
amend said Code to reflect the changes adopted herein and to correct typographical 
errors and to format and number paragraphs to conform to the existing Code. 

Section sixteen. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be effective upon the date of final 
adoption hereof and publication as required by law. 

Passed on first reading on the 13th day of July, 2021 
 
Passed, Approved and Adopted on 27th day of July, 2021 
 
 
       CITY OF BURNET 
ATTEST: 
 

        
      Crista Goble Bromley, Mayor 

 
 
      
Kelly Dix, City Secretary 
 
Note:   Article XXI. - Fee Schedule is attached.  



 

Attachment to Ordinance No. 2021-24 
Article XXI. - Fee Schedule. 
This Article establishes fees for permits, inspections and other services provided by the 
City under this Chapter.  Unless a fee is specified elsewhere in this Chapter, all permit 
fees required under Articles I through X of this Chapter are due and payable with an 
application for a permit and are as follows:  

 

Table One. - Building Permit Fees 

Single-family  $0.08 per square foot  
Apartments and duplexes  0.08 per square foot  
Commercial and institutional  0.08 per square foot  
Additions, remodeling, etc.  0.08 per square foot 
 Minimum of 25.00  
Demolition  50.00  
House moving  100.00 plus any additional costs incurred by 

the police department and/or the utility 
department  

Storage sheds in excess of 120 square feet  15.00  
Reinspection  35.00  
Plan review—Bldg. Dept.  100.00 each review  
Plan review—Fire Marshal  100.00 each review  

 

Table Two. - Plumbing Permit Fee Schedule 

New Construction 
Single-family residence  $ 0.08 per square foot  
Apartments and duplexes   0.08 per square foot  
Commercial and institutional   0.08 per square foot  
Repair and Additions 
 Basic permit  $25.00 plus items below  
 Fixture, each    2.50  
 Sewer yard line    2.50  
 Gas yard line    2.50  
 Water heater    2.50  
 Gas piping system    5.50 plus $0.50 each outlet over 

five  
 Lawn sprinkler system    5.00 plus $0.50 each outlet over 

five  
 Swimming pool   10.00  
 Reinspections  35.00  

Table Three. - Mechanical Permit Fees 

Single-family, duplex and apartments  $40.00 per unit  
Commercial and institutional   40.00 per unit  



 

All other types of mechanical equipment regulated by this 
code  

 10.00 per unit  

Reinspection   35.00 per unit  
Table Four. – Fire Code Permit Fees 

Type  Cost  Notes  
Burn Permits    
Residential Burn Permit  $20   
HOA, POA, Subdivision  $40  Community burn location  
Res. or Com. Development  $120   
 
Fireworks  
Displays  

$100   

 
New and Remodel  
Construction  

  

Fire Safety Plan Review  $100  General — New Construction  
Fire Safety Plan Review  $50  General — Major Remodel  
Sprinkler System  $100  < 12,000 sqft  
Sprinkler System  $200  > 12,000 sqft  
Alarm System  $100  < 12,000 sqft  
Alarm System  $200  > 12,000 sqft  
Commercial Hood Suppression  $75   
 
System  
Inspections  

  

Underground Fire Main Inspection  $30   
Sprinkler System Pressure Test  $25   
Sprinkler System Final  $50  < 12,000 sqft  
Sprinkler System Final  $100  > 12,000 sqft  
Alarm System Final  $50  < 12,000 sqft  
Alarm System Final  $100  > 12,000 sqft  
Commercial Hood Suppression 
Final  

$25   

Re-inspection Fees  ½ rate  Of Initial Inspection charge  
 
Licensing  
Inspections  

  

Foster Home  $0   
Group Home  $25   
Day Care  $25   
Nursing Home/Asst. Living  $75   
Hospital  $100   
Private Correction Facility  $50   



 

County or State Corrections Facility  $0   
Insurance Inspection  $25   
 
After Hour  
Inspection Rate  

Fee +  Inspector over time rate — 1 Hr. 
Minimum  

 
Table Five. – Outdoor Burning Fireworks Fees  

The fee for issued permits for the conducting of approved outdoor burning is subject to the following information:  

1. Established Residential or Vacant Lots: $20.00 for 30 calendar days  
2. HOA, POA, of Established Subdivision community Lot: $40.00 for 30 calendar days  
3. Commercial or Residential Development Property under developer control: $150 for 30 calendar 

days  
4. Exception: Extensions may be granted if the time period was shortened due to weather 

conditions, state or county issued burn bans, extended red flag warnings or any other reasonable 
situation as determined by the Fire Marshal.  

The fireworks application fee is $100.00. 
 
 
 

Table Six. - Electrical Permit Fees 

New Construction 
Single-family residence  $0.08 per square foot  
Apartments and duplexes   0.08 per square foot  
Commercial and institutional   0.08 per square foot plus 

$50.00 for service over 200 
amp, plus $20.00 per feeder 
panel  

Remodeling and Additions 
 Basic permit  $25.00 plus items listed 

below  
 Feeder panels   20.00  
 Electric outlets and fixtures    0.20 each  
 Service size   
  100 amp  $30.00  
  200 amp   30.00  
  300 amp   45.00  
  400 amp   60.00  
Other Electrical Charges 
 Construction meter loop  $15.00  
 Mobile home hookup   10.00  
 Swimming pool   10.00  
 Reinspection   35.00  

 
 



 
 

 
Administration 

 

 
ITEM 4.5 
 
Kelly Dix 
City Secretary 
512.715.3209 
kdix@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
 
 

Meeting Date:  July 13, 2021 
 
Agenda Item:  Discuss and consider action: Appointment of Burnet Municipal  

Airport Advisory Board Members: K. Dix 
 
Background: Currently the following members of the Burnet Municipal 

Airport Advisory Board Dave Hargett (position 4) and James 
Wreyford (position 5) have completed their term on the board 
and are eligible for re-appointment. Both members have 
expressed their desire to serve another term and have 
requested re-appointment.  

  
Information: Staff is requesting re-appointment of the current Airport 

Advisory members Dave Hargett (position 4) and James 
Wreyford (position 5) for a two year term that will end in June 
2023.  

  
Fiscal Impact: No fiscal impact 
 

 
Recommendation: Staff recommends re-appointment of Dave Hargett and 

James Wreyford to the Burnet Municipal Airport Advisory 
Board as presented. 

 



 
 

 
Administration 

 

 
ITEM 4.6 
 
Kelly Dix 
City Secretary 
(512)-756-6093 ext. 3209 
kdix@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
 
 

Meeting Date:  July 13, 2021 
 
Agenda Item:  Discuss and consider action: Burnet Historic Preservation                 
    Board appointment: K. Dix 
 
Background:  Ordinance 2016-19; Section 22-235(b) states: The Board                 
    shall consist of five members; one of which shall be a member 
    of the City of Burnet staff, one shall be a member of the City            
    Council, or a City staff member appointed in their stead, and               
    three at-large members.    

Currently there are two at large positions on the Burnet Historic 
Board to be filled.   
 

Information: An application for appointment was received from Cheryl 
Howell seeking a position on the Burnet Historic Preservation 
Board. The term is for a two year period ending June 2023. 

  

Fiscal Impact:  None. 

 

Recommendation: Appointment of Cheryl Howell to the Burnet Historic 
Preservation Board. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 





Burnet\DefeasanceRes2013CTRCO 1 

 

 
Administration 

 

 

ITEM 4.7 
 
 
David Vaughn 
City Manager 
512.715.3208 
dvaughn@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
 
 

Meeting Date:  July 13, 2021 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss and consider action: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 

DEFEASANCE AND REDEMPTION OF CERTAIN OF THE 
CITY'S OUTSTANDING OBLIGATIONS AND OTHER 
RELATED MATTERS: D. Vaughn 

Background: 
  
Information: The attached resolution would authorize the early pre-

payment of approximately $1,145,000 in outstanding debt 
related to the fire station.  This will free up approximately 
$2.2m in debt capacity to be used towards the new City Hall. 

  
Fiscal Impact: $1,145,000 

 
Recommendation: Approval and adoption of Resolution No. R2021-35 as 

presented. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Burnet\DefeasanceRes2013CTRCO 2 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
COUNTY OF BURNET §      
CITY OF BURNET  §    

 
RESOLUTION NO. R2021-35 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING DEFEASANCE AND REDEMPTION OF 
CERTAIN OF THE CITY'S OUTSTANDING OBLIGATIONS AND OTHER 
RELATED MATTERS 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Burnet, Texas (the "City") has duly issued and there is now 

outstanding several series of debt, secured by ad valorem taxes, revenues or a 
combination of such ad valorem taxes and revenues (collectively, the "Callable 
Obligations"); and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City expects to have sufficient funds available after taxes are 

collected for the 2021 tax year to pay off a portion of the Callable Obligations prior to their 
maturity, which will save the City's taxpayers by reducing the City's future principal and 
interest payments on such debt; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council (the "City Council") of the City deems it to be in the 

best interest of the City to use lawfully available funds to defease and redeem a portion 
of the Callable Obligations during Fiscal Year 2021; and, 

 
WHEREAS, to give effect to this action, the City Council will direct staff to give 

effect to such redemption and defeasance during the Summer of 2021;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BURNET, TEXAS THAT:  
 

Section 1. The City hereby calls for redemption the Callable Obligations 
selected by the Mayor or City Manager (each an "Authorized Official", and such selected 
Callable Obligations, the "Defeased Obligations") in an aggregate principal amount of 
$1,145,000.  Attached to this Resolution as Exhibit "A" and made a part hereof for all 
purposes, is a copy of the form of Notice of Defeasance and Redemption for the Defeased 
Obligations.  Each Authorized Official is authorized to approve such changes to complete 
and finalize the Notice of Defeasance and Redemption once the Callable Obligations 
have been selected and as further authorized in Section 4 hereof.  Each Authorized 
Official, the City's Financial Advisor, the City's Bond Counsel and/or the paying agent for 
the Defeased Obligations are hereby authorized to take all actions necessary to call for 
the redemption and defeasance of such obligations, including finalizing the notice of 
redemption, sending all notices of such redemption required by any ordinance authorizing 
the Defeased Obligations and approving and executing any other document or 
agreement, including an escrow agreement, that may be necessary to give effect to the 
actions authorized by this Resolution. Each Authorized Official is further authorized to 
determine the timing of the defeasance of the Defeased Obligations and the delivery of 
the notice once all requirements of this Resolution for such defeasance have been 
satisfied; provided that such defeasance must occur prior to the end of the City's 2021 
Fiscal Year and that such notice in all events is to be given by the time and in the manner 



Burnet\DefeasanceRes2013CTRCO 3 

required in any ordinance authorizing the issuance of the Defeased Obligations.  Further, 
all prior actions by City staff and consultants to give effect to any redemption and 
defeasance of outstanding City debt during Fiscal Year 2021 are hereby approved and 
confirmed. 
 

Section 2. Each Authorized Official is hereby authorized to transfer lawfully 
available City funds as necessary to defease and redeem the Defeased Obligations. 

 
Section 3.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Resolution to the 

contrary, effectuating the defeasance and redemption contemplated by this Resolution is 
subject to a determination by an Authorized Official that lawfully available funds are or will 
be on deposit in the applicable interest and sinking fund of the City sufficient to accomplish 
the defeasance of the Defeased Obligations at the time such defeasance occurs. 
Additionally, the amount of the Defeased Obligations to be defeased and redeemed may 
be adjusted as approved by an Authorized Official based on available funds and final 
rates for any escrow securities, subject to the requirements in Section 1 above. 

 
Section 4.   Each Authorized Official and all other officers, employees and agents 

of the City, and each of them, shall be and they are hereby expressly authorized, 
empowered and directed from time to time and at any time to do and perform all such 
acts and things, including giving any notices as may be required by the City's continuing 
disclosure obligations, if any, with respect to the Defeased Obligations and all other 
instruments, whether or not herein mentioned, as may be necessary or desirable in order 
to carry out the terms and provisions of this Resolution or the official actions authorizing 
the Defeased Obligations.  

 
Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any 

circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the 
application thereof to other circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and this governing 
body hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision. 
 

Section 6. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
passage and approval. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of July, 2021. 

 
 

_________________________  
       Crista Goble Bromley, Mayor 

City of Burnet, Texas 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Kelly Dix, City Secretary 
City of Burnet, Texas 
 



Burnet\DefeasanceRes2013CTRCO 4 

 EXHIBIT "A" 
 

NOTICE OF REDEMPTION 
  

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City of Burnet, Texas (the "City") has defeased and 
called certain maturities for redemption of a portion of the outstanding bonds of the City 
described below at a price of par plus accrued interest to such date of redemption, to-wit: 
 
Burnet, Texas Combination Tax & Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2013, dated 
April 15, 2013, a portion of the bonds maturing on February 1, 2022 through, and including, 
2028, as further described below (collectively, the "Obligations"). 

 
Maturity 

 Date 
(February 1) 

 
Principal 
Amount 

Outstanding 

 
 

Interest 
 Rate 

 
 

Redemption/ 
Maturity Date 

 
 
 

@Par 
2022 $155,000 2.190% August 25, 2021 100% 
2023 155,000 2.190 August 25, 2021 100% 
2024 160,000 2.190 August 25, 2021 100% 
2025 165,000 2.190 August 25, 2021 100% 
2026 165,000 2.190 August 25, 2021 100% 
2027 170,000 2.190 August 25, 2021 100% 
2028 175,000 2.190 August 25, 2021 100% 

     
The Obligations being redeemed shall be redeemed upon presentation at the principal 
corporate offices of TIB-The Independent Bankers Bank, N.A., as paying agent/registrar for 
the Obligations, at the addresses set forth below. Interest on the Obligations shall cease to 
accrue from and after August 25, 2021.   
 

First Class/Registered/Certified 
Mail By Overnight or Courier By Hand 

TIB The Independent Bankers 
Bank, N.A. 
11701 Luna Road 
Farmers Branch, TX 75234 

TIB The Independent 
Bankers Bank, N.A. 
11701 Luna Road 
Farmers Branch, TX 75234 

TIB The Independent Bankers 
Bank, N.A. 
11701 Luna Road 
Farmers Branch, TX 75234 

 
In compliance with section 3406 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, payors 
making certain payments due on debt securities may be obligated to deduct and withhold a 
portion of such payment from the remittance to any payee who has failed to provide such 
payor with a valid taxpayer identification number.  To avoid the imposition of this withholding 
tax, such payees should submit a certified taxpayer identification number when surrendering 
bonds for redemption. 
 

CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS 
 
 
 



 
 

 
Human Resources Department 

 

 
ITEM 4.8 
 
Kelli Sames 
Director of Human Resources 
(512)-715-3213 
ksames@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
Meeting Date:  July 13, 2021 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss and consider action: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS, AMENDING 
SECTION 8.12 MILITARY LEAVE, OF THE PERSONNEL 
POLICY MANUAL BY UPDATING AND CLARIFYING 
POLICY REQUIREMENTS: K. Sames  

 
Background: The City of Burnet currently has in effect a Personnel Policy 

Manual that was adopted by City Council on December 8, 
2009, with an effective date of December 8, 2009. Since the 
original adoption, recommended revisions to the Personnel 
Policy have occurred from time to time. 

 
Information: Included in the Personnel Manual is Policy No. 8.12, Military 

Leave. Per legislative approval of HB 1589 from the Eighty-
Seventh Legislative Session, eligible staff would be entitled to 
seven paid workdays per fiscal year if called to respond to a 
disaster.  

 
H.B. 1589 (Davis/Menéndez) – Paid Military 
Leave: provides that: (1) a person who is an 
officer or employee of the state, a city, a county, 
or another political subdivision and who is a 
member of the Texas military forces, a reserve 
component of the armed forces, or a member of 
a state or federally authorized urban search and 
rescue team is entitled to paid leave of absence 
for each day the person is called to state active 
duty by the governor or another appropriate 
authority in response to a disaster, not to exceed 
seven workdays in a fiscal year; and (2) during 
the leave of absence described in (1), the person 
may not be subjected to loss of time, efficiency 
rating, personal time, sick leave, or vacation time. 

 
Proposed Personnel Policy No. 8.12, Military Leave is 
attached as Exhibit A and changes are notated in red.   



 
The proposed changes have been reviewed by the City 
Manager and City Attorney.  
 

Fiscal Impact: Salary and benefits for employees eligible for paid military 
leave will be administered in accordance with policy 
guidelines.  

   
Recommendation: City staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R2021-36 

updating Personnel Policy No. 8.12 Military Leave effective 
September 1, 2021 as presented. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
RESOLUTION NO. R2021-36 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET, 
TEXAS, AMENDING SECTION 8.12 MILITARY LEAVE, OF THE 
PERSONNEL POLICY MANUAL BY UPDATING AND CLARIFYING 
POLICY REQUIREMENTS.  
 

Whereas, the City Council believes its personnel policies should reflect the needs of the 
City and meet all applicable state and federal labor laws; and  
 
Whereas, it is necessary to update, revise, and clarify language in the City of Burnet 
Personnel Policies consistent with laws, regulations, and industry standard practices; and 
 
Whereas, the City of Burnet has previously adopted Ordinance No. 2009-31, Personnel 
Policy Manual on December 8, 2009; and  
 
Whereas, the Personnel Policy Manual was last revised on June 8, 2021; and 
 
Whereas, the City Council believes it is in the best interest of the City and its employees 
to make additional amendments to said Personnel Policy Manual; and  
 
Whereas, the City Council has reviewed the proposed amendments to the Personnel 
Policy Manual and has determined the need to update and clarify those sections. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BURNET, TEXAS, THAT:  
 

Section 1. The City Council hereby accepts and adopts the amendment to the 
Personnel Policy to include Section 8.12 Military Leave as attached hereto as Exhibit “A” 
with an effective date of September 1, 2021.  

 
Section 2. The findings and recitations set out herein above are found to be true 

and correct and are hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all 
purposes as findings of fact.  

 
Section 3. If any provision of this resolution or the application of any provision to 

any person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions 
or applications hereof which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end the provisions of this resolution are declared to be severable.  

 
Section 4. That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 

which this resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice 
of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, Loc. Gov't. Code.  



 
PASSED AND APPROVED on this 13th day of July 2021.  

 
 
CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS  
 
 
 
__________________________  
Crista Goble Bromley, Mayor  
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 

_______________________ 
Kelly Dix, City Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit A 
 
8.12 MILITARY LEAVE  (Revised 7-13-2021, Effective 9-1-2021, Resolution 2021-**) 
 
The City of Burnet complies with all state and federal laws relating to employees in reserve or 
active military service and does not discriminate against employees who serve in the military. 
Temporary employees who have brief or non-recurrent positions with the City and who have no 
reasonable expectation that their employment with the City will continue indefinitely or for a 
significant period of time are generally ineligible for extended paid military leave in excess of 15 
days, re-employment rights, or any other military leave benefits under this policy.   

 
This policy covers employees who serve in the uniformed services (i.e., a member of the United 
States or Texas military forces, a reserve component of the armed forces, or a member of a state 
or federally authorized urban search and rescue team), in a voluntary or involuntary basis, 
including active duty, active duty for training, initial active duty for training, inactive duty training, 
and full-time National Guard duty.   

 
Notice to City of Need for Leave.  Employees must provide as much advance written or verbal 
notice to the City as possible for all military duty (unless giving notice is impossible, unreasonable, 
or precluded by military necessity).  Absent unusual circumstances, such notice must be given to 
the City no later than 24 hours after the employee receives the military orders. To be eligible for 
paid military leave, employees must complete and submit a Leave Request Form along with the 
official documents setting forth the purpose of the leave and, if known, its duration.  The Leave 
Request Form must be turned into the Department Director and the Director of Human Resources 
as far in advance of the leave as possible. 
 
Paid and Unpaid Leave for Training and Duty.  
 
COMPENSATION 
 
Full Pay for Up to 15 Days.  An employee shall be eligible for paid leave for military duty for a 
maximum of fifteen (15) workdays (120 hours, or 180 hours for an employee in a shift firefighter 
or police position), during the fiscal year (October 1 through September 30).  This leave may be 
used when an employee is engaged in National Guard or U.S. armed forces reserve training or 
active military duty ordered or approved by proper military authority.  The paid leave days may 
be consecutive or scattered throughout the year. An employee who qualifies for this leave may 
request an annual accounting of the use of this leave. Military leave will not count as time worked 
for the purposes of determining overtime. 

 
Full Pay for Up to 7 Days. An employee shall be eligible for paid leave for military duty in 
response to a disaster, not to exceed seven (7) workdays (56 hours, or 84 hours for an employee in 
a shift firefighter or police position), during the fiscal year (October 1 through September 30). The 
paid leave days may be consecutive or scattered throughout the year. An employee who qualifies 
for this leave may request an annual accounting of the use of this leave. Military leave will not 
count as time worked for the purposes of determining overtime. 



Texas Government Code - GOV'T § 418.004. Definitions - “Disaster” means the 
occurrence or imminent threat of widespread or severe damage, injury, or loss of 
life or property resulting from any natural or man-made cause, including fire, flood, 
earthquake, wind, storm, wave action, oil spill or other water contamination, 
volcanic activity, epidemic, air contamination, blight, drought, infestation, 
explosion, riot, hostile military or paramilitary action, extreme heat, cybersecurity 
event, other public calamity requiring emergency action, or energy emergency.  
 
Other Paid Leave.  An employee who has exhausted all available paid military leave may, at their 
option, use any other available paid leave time (i.e., vacation leave, holiday leave and 
compensatory time) to cover their absence from work. 

 
Unpaid Leave.  After an employee has exhausted all available paid military leave (including any 
other paid leave time that the employee chooses to use to cover a military absence), the employee 
will be placed on leave without pay until their military leave duty is complete and they return to 
work.  

  
Benefits.  The City will continue to provide employees on paid military leave with the following 
City benefits.   
 
Medical and Dental.  While an employee is on paid military leave (or any military leave of less 
than 31 days), the City will continue to pay its portion of the monthly premium for group health 
benefits.  When military leave is unpaid, the employee may elect to continue group health coverage 
for up to 24 months following separation of employment or until the employee’s re-employment 
rights expire, whichever event occurs first, for the employee and eligible dependents.   

 
Upon an employee’s return to employment following military service, the City will 
provide health insurance coverage immediately.  In addition, a returning employee 
will not be subjected to exclusions from coverage unless the exclusions apply to 
injuries or conditions that were incurred as a result of military service.   
 
Other Benefits.  While on paid military leave, employees continue to accrue vacation, sick leave 
and other benefits provided to other employees on paid leave.  The City will also continue to pay 
the premium for any City-provided life insurance while the employee is on paid military leave.  
While on unpaid military leave, employees are generally ineligible for most City-provided 
benefits.  Benefits, such as vacation and sick leave, do not accrue while an employee is on unpaid 
leave, including unpaid military leave.  While on unpaid military leave, benefit accruals will be 
suspended and will resume upon the employee’s return to active employment.  Once an employee 
returns to work following an unpaid leave, the employee will be treated as though continuously 
employed for purposes of determining benefits based on length of service, such as vacation accrual 
and longevity pay. 
 
TMRS.  Typically, an employee’s period of uniformed service is deemed to constitute service for 
purposes of vesting and benefit accrual.   Thus, employees earn service credit for time spent on 
active-duty military leave.  Service time is credited when an employee returns to work. To qualify 
for service credit, an employee must: return to work for the City within 90 days after discharge; 



receive an honorable discharge; and timely complete the TMRS USERRA Military Service Credit 
Application.  In order to receive monetary credit, an employee has the lesser of 5 years or 3 times 
the length of the military service to make up any TMRS contributions that were missed while on 
military leave.   
 
RETURNING FROM LEAVE   

 
Re-employment Rights. An employee who completes his/her military service shall be re-
employed in the position they would have had if they had been continuously employed, pursuant 
to 38 U.S.C. Section 4313, as amended.  

 
Deadline to Notify City of Intent to Return to Work.  The deadline for an employee to return 
to work and/or notify the City that the employee intends to return to work following military leave 
depends upon how long the employee’s military service lasted:  
 

• For service of less than 31 days, employees have 8 hours following their 
release from service to report for their next scheduled work period. 

 
• For service between 31 days and 180 days, employees have 14 days 

following their release from service to apply for re-employment. 
 

• For service of more than 180 days, employees have 90 days following their 
release from service to apply for re-employment. 

 
These deadlines may be extended for 2 years or more when an employee suffers service-related 
injuries that prevent the employee from applying for re-employment or when circumstances 
beyond the employee’s control make reporting within the time limits impossible or unreasonable. 
 
Required Documentation.  To qualify to return to work, an employee returning from leave must 
provide to the Human Resources department, documentation of the length and character of military 
service.  Also, if the military leave lasted more than 31 calendar days, the employee must submit 
documentation of discharge or release under honorable conditions.  Such documentation must be 
provided not later than the deadline for returning to work as stated above. 
 
Changed Circumstances.  If the City’s circumstances have changed to such an extent that it would 
be impossible or unreasonable to reemploy an employee, the City may not be required to reemploy 
an employee following their return from military leave.  For example, a reduction-in-force that 
eliminates the position held by an employee returning from leave may excuse the City from its 
obligation to reemploy the employee.  In addition, the City will make efforts to reemploy and 
accommodate an employee who was injured or has an aggravated injury while on military duty 
either in the same, equivalent position or the nearest approximation where they are qualified.  The 
City is not required to make efforts to qualify returning employees for particular positions or to 
make accommodations for employees who suffered service-related disabilities when such efforts 
or accommodations would impose an undue hardship on the City. 
 

 



 

 
Administration 

 

 

ITEM 4.9 
 
 
David Vaughn 
City Manager 
512.715.3208 
dvaughn@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
 
 

Meeting Date:  July 13, 2021 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss and consider action: Transfer of 179D Tax Deduction 

for the Burnet Police Department Facility: D. Vaughn 
 
Background: Federal tax law allows the designer (architect, engineer or 

contractor) to tax a tax deduction for publicly owned buildings 
that have an energy efficient design.  The designer is allowed 
to take the credit, since the city is tax exempt. 

  
Information: Since this is a tax deduction and not a credit, the exact amount 

is unknown, but has been estimated by American 
Constructors to be worth approximately $6,400-$19,200 in 
value. 

  
Fiscal Impact: None 

 
Recommendation: Staff recommends a motion to authorize the City Manager to 

execute the transfer of the 179D Tax Deduction to American 
Constructors. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
David Vaughn 
City of Burnet City Manager 
1001 Buchanan Drive, Suite 4 
Burnet, TX 78611 
 

TRANSFER OF 179D TAX DEDUCTION 
 
Under the provisions set forth by the Internal Revenue Service, Notice 2008-40, Section 3 - Special rule for Government Owned or Non 
Profit Buildings, the undersigned do hereby acknowledge this document as execution for transfer of allowable 179D tax deduction for the 
Public Building from Owner to the Designer. 
 
Cost of the property        In excess of 4,000,000        
Property Placed in Service Date        2020 
179D deduction allocated to Designer – American Constructors     100% 
 
 
Owner: 
“I declare that I have examined this allocation, including accompanying documents, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, the facts 
presented in support of this allocation are true, correct, and complete.”  

Name:  City of Burnet 
 
Address:  1001 Buchanan Drive, Suite 4 
 
City: Burnet  State: TX  Zip 78611 
 
Phone Number: 512-756-6093 
 
Authorized Representative 
 
    
Signature  Date 
 
 
Designer: 
I declare that I have examined this allocation, including accompanying documents and to the best of my knowledge and belief, the facts 
presented in support of this allocation are true, correct and complete. 
 
Name:  American Constructors 
 
Address:  11900 West Parmer Lane, Suite 200 
 
City: Cedar Park  State: TX  Zip 78613 
 
Phone Number: 512-328-2026 
 
Authorized Representative 
 
    
Signature  Date 
 



 
 

Public Building 

Name:  New Police Headquarters 
 
Address:  2000 S Water St 
 
City: Burnet  State: TX  Zip: 78611 
 

 



 
 

NOTICE 2008-40, SECTION 3 SPECIAL RULE FOR GOVERNMENT OWNED OR NON PROFIT BUILDINGS 

 

SECTION 3. SPECIAL RULE FOR GOVERNMENT-OWNED BUILDINGS 

.01 In General. In the case of energy efficient commercial building property (or partially qualifying commercial building 
property for which a deduction is allowed under § 179D) that is installed on or in property owned by a Federal, State, or local 
government or a political subdivision thereof, the owner of the property may allocate the § 179D deduction to the person 
primarily responsible for designing the property (the designer). If the allocation of a § 179D deduction to a designer satisfies 
the requirements of this section, the deduction will be allowed only to that designer. The deduction will be allowed to the 
designer for the taxable year that includes the date on which the property is placed in service.  

.02 Designer of Government-Owned Buildings. A designer is a person that creates the technical specifications for 
installation of energy efficient commercial building property (or partially qualifying commercial building property for which a 
deduction is allowed under § 179D). A designer may include, for example, an architect, engineer, contractor, environmental 
consultant or energy services provider who creates the technical specifications for a new building or an addition to an existing 
building that incorporates energy efficient commercial building property (or partially qualifying commercial building property for 
which a deduction is allowed under § 179D). A person that merely installs, repairs, or maintains the property is not a designer.  

.03 Allocation of the Deduction. If more than one designer is responsible for creating the technical specifications for 
installation of energy efficient commercial building property (or partially qualifying commercial building property for which a 
deduction is allowed under § 179D) on or in a government-owned building, the owner of the building shall—  

(1) determine which designer is primarily responsible and allocate the full deduction to that designer, or  

(2) at the owner’s discretion, allocate the deduction among several designers.  

.04 Form of Allocation. An allocation of the § 179D deduction to the designer of a government-owned building must be in 
writing and will be treated as satisfying the requirements of this section with respect to energy efficient commercial building 
property (or partially qualifying commercial building property for which a deduction is allowed under § 179D) if the allocation 
contains all of the following:  

(1) The name, address, and telephone number of an authorized representative of the owner of the government-owned 
building;  

(2) The name, address, and telephone number of an authorized representative of the designer receiving the allocation of the § 
179D deduction;  

(3) The address of the government-owned building on or in which the property is installed;  

(4) The cost of the property; 

(5) The date the property is placed in service;  

(6) The amount of the § 179D deduction allocated to the designer;  

(7) The signatures of the authorized representatives of both the owner of the government-owned building and the designer or 
the designer’s authorized representative; and  



 

(8) A declaration, applicable to the allocation and any accompanying documents, signed by the authorized representative of 
the owner of the government-owned building, in the following form:  

“Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this allocation, including accompanying documents, and to the best 
of my knowledge and belief, the facts presented in support of this allocation are true, correct, and complete.”  

.05 Obligations of Designer. Before a designer may claim the § 179D deduction with respect to property installed on or in a 
government-owned building, the designer must obtain the written allocation described in section 3.04. A designer is not 
required to attach the allocation to the return on which the deduction is taken. However, § 1.6001-1(a) of the Income Tax 
Regulations requires that taxpayers maintain such books and records as are sufficient to establish the entitlement to, and 
amount of, any deduction claimed by the taxpayer. Accordingly, a designer claiming a deduction under § 179D should retain 
the allocation as part of the taxpayer’s records for purposes of§ 1.6001-1(a) of the Income Tax Regulations.  

.06 Tax Consequences to Designer of Government-Owned Buildings. The maximum amount of the § 179D deduction to 
be allocated to the designer is the amount of the costs incurred by the owner of the government-owned building to place the 
energy efficient commercial building property in service. A partial deduction may be allocated and computed in accordance 
with the procedures set forth in sections 2 and 3 of Notice 2006-52. The designer does not include any amount in income on 
account of the § 179D deduction allocated to the designer. In addition, the designer is not required to reduce future deductions 
by an amount equal to the § 179D deduction allocated to the designer. Although reducing future deductions in this manner 
would provide equivalent treatment for designers that are allocated a § 179D deduction and building owners that are required 
to reduce the basis of their energy efficient commercial building property by the amount of the § 179D deduction they claim, § 
179D does not provide for any reductions other than reductions to the basis of the energy efficient commercial building 
property.  

.07 Tax Consequences to Owner of Public Building. The owner of the public building is not required to include any amount 
in income on account of the § 179D deduction allocated to the designer. The owner of the public building is, however, required 
to reduce the basis of the energy efficient commercial building property (or partially qualifying commercial building property) by 
the amount of the § 179D deduction allocated. 

 



  

 

 
Administration 

 

 

ITEM 4.10 
 
 
David Vaughn 
City Manager 
512.715.3208 
dvaughn@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
 
 

Meeting Date:  July 13, 2021 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss and consider action: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY 

COUNCIL OF BURNET TEXAS APPROVING A FINANCING 
USE AND SALES TAX AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF 
BURNET; AND ENACTING OTHER PROCEDURES AND 
PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE PURPOSES OF THIS 
RESOLUTION: D. Vaughn 

 
Background: 
  
Information: This is an agreement for the collection and distribution of the 

EDC’s portion of the sales tax, which is required by the bank 
for financing the construction loan for the 13 acre commercial 
park on 281 south. 

  
Fiscal Impact: While the agreement itself does not impact either the City’s or 

EDC’s collection of sales tax, it is the final step before the 
construction loan of $1.4m can be issued for the 281 south 
commercial park. 
 

Recommendation: Approve and adopt Resolution No. R2021-37 as presented. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

RESOLUTION NO. R2021-37 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF BURNET TEXAS 
APPROVING A FINANCING USE AND SALES TAX AGREEMENT WITH 
THE CITY OF BURNET; AND ENACTING OTHER PROCEDURES 
AND PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE PURPOSES OF THIS 
RESOLUTION 
 
WHEREAS, the Corporation was created by the City pursuant to authority 

granted by Article 5190.6, Texas Revised Civil Statutes, as amended (the "Act"), 
specifically with the Corporation to possess the powers granted by Section 4B of the 
Act [now Chapter 505, Texas Local Government Code]; and 
 

WHEREAS, the citizens of the City by vote at a duly called election approved 
the levy of a one-half of one percent sales and use tax upon the receipts at retail of 
taxable items, pursuant to Section 4B of the Act (the "Economic Development Sales 
Tax"); and 
 

WHEREAS, under the Act and the provisions of the Texas Tax Code, 
disbursements of sales and use taxes are made to cities, such as the City, by the 
Comptroller of Public Accounts of Texas (the "Comptroller"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the City on April 27, 2021, and the Corporation on April 20, 2021, 
at duly called and convened meetings, adopted resolutions approving and authorizing 
the Corporation to obtain a loan from First State Bank of Burnet in the principal 
amount of $1,400,000.00 (the “Loan”) for the purpose of financing an eligible project 
of the Corporation on property owned by the Corporation located in the City of Burnet, 
and to secure the Loan with Economic Development Sales Tax collected by the City 
under authority of Section 4B of the Act; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council and the Board of Directors find it necessary and 
advisable to enter into an Agreement to evidence the duties and responsibilities of 
the respective parties with respect to the collection, remittance and transfer of such 
sales and use tax revenues. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BURNET, TEXAS, THAT: 

 
Section one. Recitals.  The recitals set out above are hereby adopted and 

incorporated herein for all purposes. 
  

Section two.  Approval.  The “Financing Use and Sales and Tax Remittance 
Agreement” attached hereto is hereby approved. 

 



  

Section three. Authorization.  The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the 
aforementioned Agreement on behalf of the City and take such ancillary actions and 
execute such ancillary documents as may reasonably be necessary to facilitate the 
purpose of this Resolution. 

Section four. Effective date.  This Resolution shall be effective upon passage 
and approval. 

Passed and approved this 13th day of July, 2021 

CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS 
 
 

_________________________________                                
Crista Goble Bromley, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________ 
Kelly Dix, City Secretary 
 
  



  

FINANCING USE AND 
SALES TAX REMITTANCE AGREEMENT 

 
 
THIS FINANCING USE AND SALES TAX REMITTANCE AGREEMENT (the 
"Agreement") is by and between the City of Burnet, Texas (the "City") and the Burnet 
Economic Development Corporation (the "Corporation"); and for the mutual promises 
and covenants contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the 
receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 
 

Recitals 
 

WHEREAS, the Corporation was created by the City pursuant to authority 
granted by Article 5190.6, Texas Revised Civil Statutes, as amended (the "Act"), 
specifically with the Corporation to possess the powers granted by Section 4B of the 
Act [now Chapter 505, Texas Local Government Code]; and 
 

WHEREAS, the citizens of the City by vote at a duly called election approved 
the levy of a one-half of one percent sales and use tax upon the receipts at retail of 
taxable items, pursuant to Section 4B of the Act (the "Economic Development Sales 
Tax"); and 
 

WHEREAS, under the Act and the provisions of the Texas Tax Code, 
disbursements of sales and use taxes are made to cities, such as the City, by the 
Comptroller of Public Accounts of Texas (the "Comptroller"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the City on April 27, 2021, and the Corporation on April 20, 2021, 
at duly called and convened meetings, adopted resolutions approving and authorizing 
the Corporation to obtain a loan from First State Bank of Burnet in the principal 
amount of $1,400,000.00 (the “Loan”) for the purpose of financing an eligible project 
of the Corporation on property owned by the Corporation located in the City of Burnet, 
and to secure the Loan with Economic Development Sales Tax collected by the City 
under authority of Section 4B of the Act; and 
 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto find it necessary and advisable to enter into this 
Agreement to evidence the duties and responsibilities of the respective parties with 
respect to the collection, remittance and transfer of such sales and use tax revenues. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and agreements herein 
made, and subject to the conditions herein set forth, the City and the Corporation 
contract and agree as follows: 
 
 
 
 



  

ARTICLE I 
TRANSFER OF SALES TAXES 

 
Section 1.1. Deposit of Funds with Depository. The City has established and 
maintains at an official depository bank of the City (the "Depository") an account into 
which taxes and other revenues of the City, including revenues derived from the 
Economic Development Sales Tax, are deposited. Pursuant to generally accepted 
accounting principles, the City maintains financial accounting records of all monies 
so deposited, including a record of all revenues derived from Economic Development 
Sales Taxes on behalf of the Corporation. 
 
Section 1.2. Security for Funds. The City hereby agrees that monies on deposit in 
the aforementioned account with the Depository shall at all times be collateralized in 
the manner and with the collateral required by the City for its own funds. 
 
Section 1.3. Change in Depository. The City reserves the right from time to time to 
change its official depository bank, and hereby agrees to give the Corporation 
advance written notice of any such change in its official depository bank. 

 
 

ARTICLE II 
TRANSFER OF FUNDS 

 
Section 2.1. Collection of Economic Development Sales Tax. The President or 
Vice-President of the Board of Directors of the Corporation and the City Manager of 
the City shall take such actions as are required to cause the Economic Development 
Sales Tax to be delivered and transferred by the City to the Corporation by the last 
business day of each month. 
 
Section 2.2. Use of Monies by Corporation. The Corporation agrees to use the 
Pledged Revenues on deposit in the Operating Fund in a manner consistent with the 
terms and conditions of the Corporation’s Resolution No. BEDC R2021-03. 
 
 

ARTICLE III 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
This Agreement shall become effective on July 13, 2021.  
 
 

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.] 



 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 
signed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be considered an original for all 
purposes, as of the effective date. 
 
 
 
CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS 
 
 
By:__________________________________ 
Crista Goble Bromley, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Kelly Dix, City Secretary 
 
 
 
[CITY SEAL] 
 
 
 
 
BURNET ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
 
 
 
 
By:______________________________ 
Wayne Brown, Vice-President 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Kelly Dix, City Secretary 

 
 



 

 

 
Administration 

 

 

ITEM 4.11 
 
 
David Vaughn 
City Manager 
512.715.3208 
dvaughn@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
 
 

Meeting Date:  July 13, 2021 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss and consider action: Approval and authorization for 

the City Manager to execute a renewal contract with Spectrum 
Enterprise for fiber-based ethernet service: D. Vaughn 

 
Background: 
  
Information: The attached contract doubles our fiber internet bandwidth 

connection from Spectrum. 
  
Fiscal Impact: This is a five year contract and increases the current bill by 

approximately $31 per month. 
 

Recommendation: Authorize the City Manager to execute the agreement as 
presented. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



�

�������	�
�����������������������������������������������������������������
������ ������� !�"�#�$%&'(������)������� 		������� �����������*����+���,,�-��)��-�������������������.�"/�0/������ ��������

1234562�73823���9����
-:��;�<=>;=�?@ABCDEFB�<CGBCHIJ�EK�BL������������!!��������� ���)������� !��)��������������! ��)�����)��KEMNOPQCB�RSTFU�RBSTV�?@;WWBFPEDB�>OPBHI�ONG�EK�RX�ONG�RBPVBBN�YZOCPBC�YT[[QNEFOPETNK�<\BCOPENMJ�]]Y�TN�RBZOSW�TW�PZTKB�T\BCOPENM�KQRKEGEOCEBK�\CTDEGENM�PZB�ABCDEFB?KI�ZBCBQNGBC�?@A\BFPCQ[HI�ONG�YQKPT[BC�?OK�) ̂ ��_�, ̂ �̀������� �������_a������_b����� ��)���������	�
���������� 		�����,����	� !���������� ����� ��)���������	�
���������̂�_���*�)���.//���������+������	+� 	/�c ������ ����,̀� �*��!����,���_,�*�����d������KBCDEFBK�OMCBB[BNP�[QPQOSSX�BLBFQPBG�RX�PZB�\OCPEBK�?BOFZJ�OK�O\\CT\CEOPBJ�O�@ABCDEFB�eMCBB[BNPHIf�;LFB\P�OK�����!���,,a�	 ��!����)�����*��,,� �)������	������ ����� �� !��)���������������	����)�,,���	�������	�������������!�,,�! ���������!!���+��1ghijklm�2njhkgkoph�6qnjrij�5nsqkmrjoqn���������	�
�����������t�"�� ̂ ��� ������������+�� ��*�u��v����� � �����.��w )��x�� ����������,��) ��.�"��0�0""v�����������
	��,.����b )�+̂�� �y�)�����+� 	� �� 6lpjqmhk�5nsqkmrjoqn� ���� 	�����	�����a� !�z�������{�c9|̀� � ������}���"0~0t0� ����������"���-9�uz
-���������.�w�	�z��) �z�-�
���{��~v���� ����,��) ���c"��̀���"(���~� 
	��,.������)�y���a !_�����+� 	� ��� ��������	��������:���)�� ��,��) ���c"��̀���"(���~� 
	��,.������)�y���a !_�����+� 	� ��z�,,������������"���-9�uz
-���������.�w�	�z��) �z�-�
���{��~v��� ��z�,,����� ��������	��������:���)��� ��,��) ���c"��̀���"(���~�� 
	��,.������)�y���a !_�����+� 	� ���



�

�������	�
�����������������������������������������������������������������
������ ������� !�"�#�$%&'(������)������� 		������� �����������*����+���,,�-��)��-�������������������.�"/�0/������ ��������

123�415�6278925�92678:29�4;�<==<�9�3>?@A�9?��B�CDAE@?�;F�GHIJJ�9@AKLM@�5@NMALO?LPE� �:PE?A>M?�;@AQ� RD>E?L?S� 9>T@N�UALM@� VPE?WTS�6@MDAALEX�:W>AX@N��������������� Y��Z ��)� �� [����+��� [����+����
�����������������Z\�� Y��Z ��)� �� [�]"�+��� [�]"�+����
�)�������� ̂�� Y��Z ��)� �� [����+��� [����+������\���������������Z\�� Y��Z ��)� �� [�_��+��� [�_��+���;̀ ;4ab� cJB<d=e==�� 123�415�6278925�92678:29�4;�G===�CDAT@NPE�6f��gEL?�CTfXe�C�9?@eh==B�4DN?LE�;F�GHGhh�9@AKLM@�5@NMALO?LPE� �:PE?A>M?�;@AQ� RD>E?L?S� 9>T@N�UALM@� VPE?WTS�6@MDAALEX�:W>AX@N��
�����������������Z\�� Y��Z ��)� �� [�]"�+��� [�]"�+����
�)������
���ijk� Y��Z ��)� �� [����+��� [����+���;̀ ;4ab� chd=e==����������



�

�������	�
�����������������������������������������������������������������
������ ������� !�"�#�$%&'(������)������� 		������� �����������*����+���,,�-��)��-�������������������.�"/�0/������ ��������

�+�12134�56678��19:;<�=9>:?<@�ABCDEEF>G�H?;EGBI�;>J�19:;<�2>BK1FLB�H?;EGBI�;EB�JDB�F>�;CC9EJ;>CB�MF:?�:?B�L9>:?<@�F>N9FCB8���+�13O67+��������! ����������� �� �����,������P�*����)����*� �� �)���!��+����+�Q2�RQ1AR6�71316=6Q17+����� 	����������������S�������� ��������	��)�������)����)���������������*�� ����T� �)�����! �	��� �*����,������S��) ���,�	����� �*���T��)���,�� �����S����!����)���� ��������	�� ��������T�������� ����� ����������	���� !�	������,�!���� �� 	��� ��!��,�� ��������	������,�!���+�U+�7V6HW34�16A=7+�������������������



�

�������	�
�����������������������������������������������������������������
������ ����� �!"�#�$�%&'()������*�������!		�������!�����������+����,���--�.��*��.�������������������/�#0�10������ ��������

��*���������*�����������*������-2����*!��3������������������!��4�������*���������������,����56789:;<�7=>?@86<;� � ��������������������������A�A����������/BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB����������������������������������A��A�����������	�/BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB���������������A��A����-�/BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�������������������������A�!�A��!	���2/BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�����������������A��A�����/BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�� ���� �
CDEFG�HDIJKL



�

�������	�
�����������������������������������������������������������������
������ ����� �!"� �#�$%&'(������)�������!		�������!�����������*����+���,,�-��)��-�������������������.� /�0/������ ��������

�)��������������!��,,1�,�"��2,��3���� �



��

�������	�
���������
������������������������� �� �� �� �� �� ������������������ �����!�������!�		������������""�#�����#�����$������%����""����$���&�����������$����������������"�'"������""�����������������$������"����$�	�(����(��#����������	�(����"(����')��������������*������������������

����+,-./012�34/-0,056-��789:;<:8�=:;>?@:�A:>:B�CD;::E:<8����FGHI�JKLMNOPQ�KMQRHPOI�QGO�SOTUHLO�VOUOR�WXTOONOPQ�YZSVW[\�]KT�]ĤOT_̀a6-b�+,-./012�34/-0,056-�3/c-04-/�+-0d5.-�a4b�+,-./012�ePQOTfTHIO�gRKMJ�gKPPOLQ�SOTUHLO�YHPJHUHJMhRRi�QGO�ZSOTUHLO[�hPJ�LKRROLQHUORi�QGO�ZSOTUHLOI[\j�ka,5/al5m-b�no0b6�16-bp�̀1/�4o/�b-q54-b�c-0-54p�6call�cad-�/c-�2-a454r6�r5d-4�/o�/c-2�54�/c-�sr0--2-4/t������uc56�+vs�56�a�,a0/�oqp�a4b�c-0-̀w�54.o0,o0a/-b�̀w�0-q-0-4.-�54/o�/c-�+,-./012�34/-0,056-�+-0d5.-�sr0--2-4/�x54.l1b54r�QGO�QOTNI�hPJ�LKPJHQHKPIy�hQQhLGNOPQIy�hPJ�SOTUHLO�zTJOTI�JOILTĤOJ�QGOTOHPy�QGO�ZWXTOONOPQ[\j��FK�QGO�O{QOPQ�hPi�,0od565o4�oq�/c56�+vs�.o4ql5./6�n5/c�/c-�sr0--2-4/p�/c56�+vs�6call�.o4/0olt��|OT]KTNhPLO�QHOT�XKhRI�YZSVW�FhTXOQI[\�hTO�6-/�qo0/c�54�/c-�/àl-x6}�̀-lont�������3/c-04-/�+-0d5.-6�+vs�ua0r-/6�,0-6-4/-b�̀-lon�a0-�2-a610-b�-4b�/o�-4b�x5t-t�q0o2�a4w�/no�a,,RHLĥRO�gMIQKNOT~I�OJXO�o0�4-/no0��54/-0qa.-�b-d5.-6�a/�/c-�+-0d5.-�vo.a/5o4}�a/�/c-�54b5d5b1al�.50.15/�o0�6-0d5.-�l-d-lp�a4b�a4w�a,,l5.àl-��.0-b5/6�hTO�HIIMOJ�]KT�QGO�h]]OLQOJ�LHTLMHQ�KT�IOTUHLO�YQGO�ZW]]OLQOJ�SOTUHLO[\j�����FGO�gRKMJ�gKPPOLQ�SOTUHLO�SVW�FhTXOQ�]KT�WUhHRĥHRHQi�HI�NOhIMTOJ�̂OQ�OOP�SfOLQTMN�ePQOTfTHIO~I�POQ�KT��HPQOT]hLO�b-d5.-�x���}�lo.a/-b�a/�/c-�k16/o2-0�lo.a/5o4�a4b�/c-�,o54/�oq�,cw65.al�ca4boqq�oq�/c-�+-0d5.-�/o�/c-�klo1b�+-0d5.-��0od5b-0�YQGO�Z�hQO�hi�|KHPQ[\j�������=AC���;D:8����;�789:;<:8��<���B������<<:@8�=:;>?@:�����=�:@8;�E�7<8:;�;?�:�789:;<:8�=:;>?@:��=AC�� ��:;��;E�<@:��?:;� �:8;���� �:D?�<�B��� ��8?�<�B�������5l-6��� ��_������ �����_� ¡¢�� �� ¡¢��£5lo2-/-06��� ��_�¤���� �¤���_��¤���� ���¤����va/-4.w�� ¥���26�� ¥�¤�26�� ¥�¢�26�¦5//-0�� ¥�¤26�� ¥�¡26�� ¥�§26��0̈a2-�vo66�� ¥��t��©�� ¥��t��©�� ¥��t��©��sda5là5l5/w��� ��ªªtªª©�� ��ªªtªª©�� ��ªªtªª©���uu«�� ¡�c06t�� ¡�c06t�� ¡�c06t�����Z¬OQTK[y�ZOXHKPhR[y�hPJ�Z®hQHKPhR[�HPLRMJOI�.50.15/6�/ca/�a0-�,0od5b-b�̀w�+,-./012�34/-0,056-�/o�+-0d5.-�vo.a/5o46�b50-./lw�q0o2�/c-�+,-./012�34/-0,056-��-/no0�t���¤�Z®hQHKPhR[�al6o�54.l1b-6�all�.50.15/6�,0od5b-b�̀w�/c50b�,a0/w�6-0d5.-�,0od5b-06p�0-ra0bl-66�oq�b56/a4.-t����5l-6�a4b�£5lo2-/-06�a0-�2-a610-b�̀w�q5̀-0�0o1/-0�25l-6t�� =�:@8;�E�7<8:;�;?�:��B������<<:@8�̄�8:°�±���?<8�=AC��sda5là5l5/w��� ��ªªtªª©�������



��

�������	�
���������
������������������������ �� �� �� �� ���������������������������������������������������������������������� �����!�������!�		������������""�#�����#�����$������%����""����$���&�����������$����������������"�'"������""�����������������$������"����$�	�(����(��#����������	�(����"(����')��������������*������������������

��++,��-./0./12�34566/7/851/09:����;<=>?@ABA�CDEF@GHDIJEK�LBMJE�NDO�G?MJJBA�I@HMPBEQ�NDDO�FI@HDJB�IF�@FPBJH�LMDJHBJMJ>BQ�NDDDO�HDLB�RSBJ�TGB>HF@L�<JHBFGFDEB�DE�@JMU?B�HI�PMDJ�M>>BEE�HI�V@EHILBFWE�GFBLDEBE�HI�HFI@U?BESIIHQ�FBGMDF�IF�FBG?M>B�BX@DGLBJH�IF�HSB��YZ[\]̂Z_�̀]\a�bZ[\]̂Z�c[defZgb�[ZE@?HDJP�hFIL�M>HE�Ih�ILDEEDIJE�Ih�V@EHILBF�IF�V@EHILBFWE�FBGFBEBJHMHDiBE�IF�MPBJHEQ�\̀a�jkbldgZ[�Zmk]cgZnl�op]fk[Zb_�̀\]a�jkbldgZ[�]b�ndl�c[Zcp[Zq�ld�[ZfZpbZ�lrZ�YZ[\]̂Z�od[�lZbl]ns_�pnq�̀\]]a�td[̂Z�upvZk[Z�w\Znlbx�ydlz]lrblpnq]ns�pn{lr]ns�ld�lrZ�̂dnl[p[{�]n�lrZ�|s[ZZgZnl_�pn{�bZ[\]̂Z�]bbkZb�eZ{dnq�lrZ�̂dnnẐl]\]l{�ld�lrZ�jfdkq�YZ[\]̂Z�}[d\]qZ[�]b�ndl�̂d\Z[Zq�e{�lr]b�Y~|x������;TBFiD>B�CDEF@GHDIJK�DE�ABhDJBA�ME�MJ�I@HMPBQ�ADEF@GHDIJQ�IF�EBiBFB�ABPFMAMHDIJQ�IHSBF�HSMJ�MJ�<=>?@ABA�CDEF@GHDIJQ�lrpl�]nlZ[oZ[Zb�z]lr�lrZ��pe]f]l{�do�p�YcẐl[kg�wnlZ[c[]bZ�nZlzd[��rke�ld�l[pnbg]l�pnq�[ẐZ]\Z�nZlzd[��l[poo]̂�eZlzZZn�V@EHILBFWE���MJA���TBFiD>B��I>MHDIJE����SB�TBFiD>B�CDEF@GHDIJ�GBFDIA�UBPDJE�RSBJ�V@EHILBF�FBGIFHE�M�TBFiD>B����CDEF@GHDIJ���@EDJP���TGB>HF@L�<JHBFGFDEBWE���l[dkefZ���l]̂�Zl]ns���b{blZg���e{���̂dnlp̂l]ns���jkbldgZ[���jp[Z_���YcẐl[kg�wnlZ[c[]bZ�p̂�ndzfZqsZb�[ẐZ]cl�do�bk̂r�l[dkefZ�l]̂�Zl_�YcẐl[kg�wnlZ[c[]bZ�\pf]qplZb�lrpl�lrZ�YZ[\]̂Z�]b�pooẐlZq_�pnq�jkbldgZ[�[ZfZpbZb�lrZ�YZ[\]̂Z�od[�lZbl]nsx����rZ�YZ[\]̂Z��]b[kcl]dn�Znqb�zrZn�lrZ�pooẐlZq�YZ[\]̂Z�rpb�eZZn�[Zbld[Zqx����;TBFiD>B�CBPFMAMHDIJK�LBMJE�M�ABPFMAMHDIJ�Ih�HSB�TBFiD>B�HSMH�DE�JIH�M�TBFiD>B�CDEF@GHDIJ�IF�M�FBE@?H�Ih�MJ�<=>?@ABA��]b[kcl]dn_�bk̂r�pb�op]fk[Z�do�lrZ�YZ[\]̂Z�ld�p̂r]Z\Z�lrZ�Y~|��p[sZlb�od[�~plZn̂{���t[pgZ��Zfp{_��]llZ[���t[pgZ��Zfp{��p[]pl]dn_�d[�}p̂�Zl���t[pgZx�����YcẐl[kg�wnlZ[c[]bZ�z]ff�̂fpbb]o{�YZ[\]̂Z�c[defZgb�pb�odffdzb����-./0./12� 3./1�./5��}[]d[]l{��� �� YZ[\]̂Z��]b[kcl]dn�[Zbkfl]ns�]n�p�ldlpf�fdbb�do�YZ[\]̂Z��d[���� YZ[\]̂Z��Zs[pqpl]dn�ld�lrZ�cd]nl�zrZ[Z�jkbldgZ[�]b�knpefZ�ld�kbZ�lrZ�YZ[\]̂Z�pnq�]b�GFBGMFBA�HI�FB?BMEB�DH�hIF�DLLBADMHB�HBEHDJP�NBM>S�M�;�FDIFDH�����@HMPBKO���}[]d[]l{��� �� YZ[\]̂Z��Zs[pqpl]dn�zrZ[Z�jkbldgZ[�]b�pefZ�ld�kbZ�lrZ�YZ[\]̂Z�pnq�]b�ndl�c[Zcp[Zq�ld�[ZfZpbZ�]l�od[�]ggZq]plZ�lZbl]nsx��}[]d[]l{��� �� |�bZ[\]̂Z�c[defZg�lrpl�qdZb�ndl�]gcp̂l�lrZ�YZ[\]̂Z��d[���� |�b]nsfZ�ndn�̂][̂k]l�bcẐ]o]̂�mkpf]l{�do�YZ[\]̂Z�]nmk][{x������+++,����.�/8����5/45�/4/12:����;TBFiD>B��iMD?MUD?DH�K�DE�>M?>@?MHBA�ME�HSB�HIHM?�J@LUBF�Ih�LDJ@HBE�DJ�M�>M?BJAMF�LIJHS�?BEE�HSB�J@LUBF�Ih�LDJ@HBE�HSMH�lrZ�YZ[\]̂Z�]b�@JMiMD?MU?B�A@B�HI�M��FDIFDH�����@HMPB�N;CIRJHDLBKOQ�ADiDABA�U��HSB�HIHM?�J@LUBF�Ih�LDJ@HBE�DJ�M�>M?BJAMF�gdnlrx�����rZ�odffdz]ns�lpefZ�̂dnlp]nb�Z�pgcfZb�do�lrZ�cZ[̂ZnlpsZ�do�YZ[\]̂Z�|\p]fpe]f]l{�l[pnbfplZq�]nld�g]nklZb�do��dznl]gZ�od[�lrZ���x����YZ[\]̂Z�|\p]fpe]f]l{��p[sZl����-�.8�915����2��526�-�.��091 � ¡0154��/9¢1�6�£��091 �� �0¤91/¥���/9¢1�6����x����od[�����p{b�� ¦¦_§¦̈�� ¦x©����x����od[��̈��p{b�� ¦�_�̈ �̈� ¦x�����x����od[�����p{b�� ¦�_ª§̈�� ¦x�����x����od[��«��p{b�� ¦̈_��̈�� ¦����



��

�������	�
���������
������������������������ �� �� �� �� ���������������������������������������������������������������������� �����!�������!�		������������""�#�����#�����$������%����""����$���&�����������$����������������"�'"������""�����������������$������"����$�	�(����(��#����������	�(����"(����')��������������*������������������

���+,-��./01�234/�56�7/8569/�:.227;<����=>?�@==A�B?CDEF?B?GH�IJF�KFLJFLHM�N�OEHCP?D�LD�H>?�CQ?FCP?�HLB?�HJ�F?DHJF?�KFLJFLHM�N�OEHCP?D�REFLGP�C�SCT?GRCF�BJGH>�SCTSETCH?R�CD�H>?�SEBETCHLQ?�T?GPH>�JI�HLB?�LH�HCU?D�VW?SHFEB�XGH?FWFLD?�HJ�F?DHJF?�C�V?FQLS?�IJTTJYLGP�C�KFLJFLHM�N�OEHCP?�LG�C�SCT?GRCF�BJGH>�RLQLR?R�ZM�H>?�SJFF?DWJGRLGP�GEBZ?F�JI�HFJEZT?�HLSU?HD�IJF�KFLJFLHM�N�OEHCP?D�JW?G?R�REFLGP�H>?�SCT?GRCF�BJGH>�IJF�H>?�V?FQLS?[����@==A�W?F�SCT?GRCF�BJGH>�LD�SCTSETCH?R�CD�IJTTJYD<���������������\]4]̂053_/�̂/1̀5a�6b�534/�56�9/8569/�c936935d�e�f]50̀/:8;�g/9�h/9_3i/�� ���������2650̂�1]4j/9�6b�c936935d�e�f]50̀/�596]ĵ/�53ik/58�g/9�h/9_3i/�������,-��l05/1id�m�n904/�o/̂0dp����qCH?GSM�JF�rFCB?�s?TCM�LD�H>?�CQ?FCP?�FJEGRHFLW�G?HYJFU�R?TCMt�B?CDEF?R�?Q?FM�u�BLGEH?D�REFLGP�C�SCT?GRCF�BJGH>t�EGT?DD�B?CDEF?B?GH�LD�GJH�WJDDLZT?�CD�C�F?DETH�JI�CG�XvSTER?R�sLDFEWHLJGt�HJ�CR?wECH?TM�R?H?FBLG?�C�SJGDLDH?GH�CQ?FCP?�BJGH>TM�W?FIJFBCGS?�T?Q?T�IJF�IFCB?�R?TCM�IJF�?CS>�V?FQLS?[��=>?�FJEGRHFLW�R?TCM�LD�?vWF?DD?R�LG�BLTTLD?SJGRD�xBDy[������qCH?GSM�z�rFCB?�s?TCM�LD�SCTSETCH?R�CD�IJTTJYD<�������� h]4�6b�5a/�96]1{593g�{/̂0d�4/08]9/4/158�b69�0�h/9_3i/� �2650̂�|�6b�4/08]9/4/158�b69�0�h/9_3i/�



��

�������	�
���������
������������������������ �� �� �� �� ���������������������������������������������������������������������� �����!�������!�		������������""�#�����#�����$������%����""����$���&�����������$����������������"�'"������""�����������������$������"����$�	�(����(��#����������	�(����"(����')��������������*�����������������

+,-��./0123�4566�7�89/:2�4566�;/3<5=���>?@ABC�DEFF�EG�HG?IB�DEFF�J?CKE�KF�LBMKNBL�?F�COB�PBG@BNC?QB�EM�MG?IBF�CO?C�?GB�NEC�FR@@BFFMRSST�GB@BKUBL�@EIP?GBL�CE�COB�CEC?S�MG?IBF�CO?C�?GB�FBNC�KN�?�@?SBNL?G�IENCOV�BW@BPC�XOBGB�?NT�P?@ABC�EG�MG?IB�SEFF�KF�COB�GBFRSC�EM�?N�YW@SRLBL�ZKFGRPCKEN[��\OB�PBG@BNC?QB�@?S@RS?CKEN�KF�]?FBL�EN�MG?IBF�CO?C�?GB�CG?NFIKCCBL�MGEI�?�NBCXEGA�EGKQKN?CKEN�PEKNC�?NL�GB@BKUBL�?C�?�NBCXEGA�LBFCKN?CKEN�PEKNC[�����./0123�4566�7�89/:2�4566�;/3<5�<6�0/̂0_̂/32̀�/6�a5̂5̂b6c��� ./0123�4566�7�89/:2�4566�def���g���hii�def����j�����89/:26�;202<k2̀��� �+,,-��l<3329�7�89/:2�m2̂/n�+/9</3<5o=����pKCCBG�EG�HG?IB�ZBS?T�q?GK?CKEN�KF�LBMKNBL�?F�COB�U?GK?CKEN�KN�LBS?T�MEG�CXE�@ENFB@RCKUB�MG?IBF�CO?C�?GB�CG?NFIKCCBL�rENBsX?Tt�MGEI�?�NBCXEGA�EGKQKN?CKEN�PEKNC�?NL�GB@BKUBL�?C�?�NBCXEGA�LBFCKN?CKEN�PEKNC[��uPB@CGRI�YNCBGPGKFB�IB?FRGBF�?�F?IPSB�FBC�EM�MG?IBF�BUBGT�v�IKNRCBF�LRGKNQ�?�@?SBNL?G�IENCOV�RNSBFF�IB?FRGBIBNC�KF�NEC�PEFFK]SB�?F�?�GBFRSC�EM�?N�YW@SRLBL�ZKFGRPCKENV�?NL�LBCBGIKNBF�COB�?UBG?QB�LBS?T�]BCXBBN�@ENFB@RCKUB�MG?IBF�XKCOKN�B?@O�F?IPSB�FBC[���\OB�IENCOST�pKCCBG�w�HG?IB�ZBS?T�q?GK?CKEN�KF�@?S@RS?CBL�?F�COB�?UBG?QB�EM�?SS�EM�COB�MG?IB�LBS?T�U?GK?CKEN�IB?FRGBIBNCF�LRGKNQ�FR@O�@?SBNL?G�IENCO�?NL�KF�BWPGBFFBL�KN�IKSSKFB@ENLF�rIFt[�������� +,,,-��x23b591�y/<o32o/o02=�������y/<o32o/o02�x53<02c��zRFCEIBG�RNLBGFC?NLF�CO?C�MGEI�CKIB�CE�CKIBV�uPB@CGRI�YNCBGPGKFB�XKSS�PBGMEGI�NBCXEGA�I?KNCBN?N@B�MEG�NBCXEGA�KIPGEUBIBNCF�?NL�PGBUBNCKUB�I?KNCBN?N@B[���{N�FEIB�@?FBFV�uPB@CGRI�YNCBGPGKFB�XKSS�NBBL�CE�PBGMEGI�RGQBNC�NBCXEGA�I?KNCBN?N@BV�XOK@O�XKSS�RFR?SST�]B�@ENLR@CBL�XKCOKN�COB�GERCKNB�I?KNCBN?N@B�XKNLEXF[�����uPB@CGRI�YNCBGPGKFB�XKSS�RFB�GB?FEN?]SB�BMMEGCF�CE�PGEUKLB�?LU?N@B�NECK@B�EM�COB�?PPGEWKI?CB�CKIBV�LRG?CKENV�?NL�GB?FEN�MEG�?NT�RGQBNC�I?KNCBN?N@B�ERCFKLB�EM�COB�GERCKNB�I?KNCBN?N@B�XKNLEXF[����y/<o32o/o02�|<ò5b6c��JERCKNB�I?KNCBN?N@B�I?T�]B�PBGMEGIBL�}ENL?T�~�HGKL?T����?[I[�~���?[I[�DE@?S�\KIB[�����������

�����������������������_:�5a�3�2�89/:2�m2̂/n�+/9</3<5o�:2/6_92:2o36�a59�/��29k<02� ������������53/̂���5a�:2/6_92:2o36�a59�/��29k<02��



��

�������	�
���������
������������������������ �� �� �� �� ���������������������������������������������������������������������������� ������� �		������������!!�"�����"�����#������$����!!����#���%�����������#����������������!�&!������!!�����������������#������!����#�	�'����'��"����������	�'����!'����&(��������������)�����������������

*+,��-./.01.2�3.4516.�74.0189����:;�<=>�?@<A?B�C>D;EDF?G@>�E;�?�H>DIJ@>�KADJGL�?GM�@?B>GK?D�FEG<=�JN�B>NN�<=?G�<=>�HOP�Q?DL><NR�?GK�SAN<EF>D�JN�JG�@EFCBJ?G@>�TJ<=�<=>�<>DFN�E;�<=>�PLD>>F>G<�?GK�<=JN�HOPR�<=>G�SAN<EF>D�F?M�D>UA>N<�@D>KJ<�>UA?B�<E�<=>�@EDD>NCEGKJGL�C>D@>G<?L>�E;�<=>�FEG<=BM�D>@ADDJGL�@=?DL>N�;ED�<=>�P;;>@<>K�H>DIJ@>�?N�N><�;ED<=�JG�<=>�<?VB>�V>BETW��PGM�@D>KJ<�<E�V>�?CCBJ>K�TJBB�V>�E;;XN><�?L?JGN<�?GM�?FEAG<N�KA>�;DEF�SAN<EF>D�<E�HC>@<DAF�YG<>DCDJN>�JG�<=>�VJBBJGL�@M@B>�;EBBETJGL�<=>�K?<>�HC>@<DAF�YG<>DCDJN>�F?Z>N�J<N�@D>KJ<�K><>DFJG?<JEGW��SD>KJ<�D>UA>N<N�FAN<�V>�NAVFJ<<>K�<E�HC>@<DAF�YG<>DCDJN>�TJ<=JG�<=JD<M�[\]̂�K?MN�E;�<=>�@?B>GK?D�FEG<=�JG�T=J@=�<=>�HOP�Q?DL><�T?N�FJNN>KW��HC>@<DAF�YG<>DCDJN>�TJBB�>_>D@JN>�@EFF>D@J?BBM�D>?NEG?VB>�>;;ED<N�<E�D>NCEGK�<E�NA@=�@D>KJ<�D>UA>N<N�TJ<=JG�\]�K?MN�E;�D>@>JC<�<=>D>E;W������ ���3.4516.�5̀a1bac1b18d�� e.af�g1/.�gh��-.28h4.��ijkllmno�� pa8.f6d�q�r4a/.��s.bad��t-huf0841vw�� x188.4�q�r4a/.�s.bad��ya41a81hf�� za6{.8�q����r4a/.�ph22��\]|�� }�~������������������=EADN�� �|�� �|�� �|�� �|������=EADN�� �]|������PBB�HOP�Q?DL><N�?D>�FEG<=BM�F>?NAD>F>G<NR�?GK�SAN<EF>D�F?M�D>UA>N<�EGBM�EG>�@D>KJ<�C>D�HOP�Q?DL><�C>D�FEG<=�;ED�<=>�P;;>@<>K�H>DIJ@>W��H=EABK�EG>�>I>G<�JFC?@<�FED>�<=?G�EG>�HOP�=>D>AGK>DR�SAN<EF>D�N=?BB�D>@>JI>�<=>�NJGLB>�=JL=>N<�E;�<=>�UA?BJ;MJGL�@D>KJ<N������������������������������������������������������������������ ������������������¡����¢��£������������������¤����¢����������������¢�����������£������������������¤���������������������������������¢�������� �¥��¦������H>DIJ@>�SD>KJ<N�=>D>AGK>D�N=?BB�GE<�V>�@AFAB?<JI>�C>D�H>DIJ@>W�������+,��7§4hf16�z41h418d�̈�©u8aª.29��:;�SAN<EF>D�>_C>DJ>G@>N�?GK�D>CED<N�<=D>>�[\̂�N>C?D?<>�«DJEDJ<M���¬A<?L>N�T=>D>�<=>�ETG<JF>�>_@>>KN�;EAD�[�̂�=EADN�KADJGL�>?@=�«DJEDJ<M���¬A<?L>�TJ<=JG�<=D>>�[\̂�@EGN>@A<JI>�@?B>GK?D�FEG<=NR�<=>G�SAN<EF>D�F?M�<>DFJG?<>�<=>�P;;>@<>K�H>DIJ@>�TJ<=EA<�@=?DL>�ED�BJ?VJBJ<M�VM�CDEIJKJGL�?<�B>?N<�<=JD<M�[\]̂�K?MN�TDJ<<>G�GE<J@>�<E�HC>@<DAF�YG<>DCDJN>®�CDEIJK>KR�=ET>I>DR�<=?<�[Ĵ�SAN<EF>D�F?M�EGBM�<>DFJG?<>�<=>�P;;>@<>K�H>DIJ@>®�[JĴ�SAN<EF>D�FAN<�>_>D@JN>�J<N�DJL=<�<E�<>DFJG?<>�<=>�P;;>@<>K�H>DIJ@>�VM�CDEIJKJGL�TDJ<<>G�GE<J@>�<E�HC>@<DAF�YG<>DCDJN>�TJ<=JG�<=JD<M�[\]̂�K?MN�?;<>D�<=>�>I>G<�LJIJGL�DJN>�<E�¡����¢��£�����¢����������¦��̄�°���±�¡����¢�����������¤��������������¢�����������������¢�������������������¢����������<>DFJG?<JEG�;ED�?BB�H>DIJ@>N�CDEIJK>K�VM�HC>@<DAF�YG<>DCDJN>�CADNA?G<�<E�<=>�PLD>>F>G<R�?GK�[JÎ�<=>�;ED>LEJGL�<>DFJG?<JEG�DJL=<�CDEIJK>N�<=>�NEB>�?GK�>_@BANJI>�D>F>KM�E;�SAN<EF>D�?GK�<=>�NEB>�?GK�>_@BANJI>�BJ?VJBJ<M�E;�HC>@<DAF�YG<>DCDJN>�;ED�@=DEGJ@�«DJEDJ<M���¬A<?L>N�?GK�SAN<EF>D�N=?BB�GE<�V>�>BJLJVB>�;ED�?GM�?KKJ<JEG?B�@D>KJ<NW�Q>DFJG?<JEG�TJBB�V>�>;;>@<JI>�;ED<MX��¤��°~²±�������������������¢�����������£���������������������������������������¢������������



��

� ���������	
	�	��� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� ���������������	
���������������������� ���!!�"���� �"� ����#��$����!!�%��#��� &�%���������#� ������ ���������!�'!������!!����� �����������#������!� %��# ���(����(��"� �������� ���(��%%!(����')��������������*��������������������

�� ��%�������+����%�� ���,-./0�123/02/3�455/66�7/08-5/�9/8/:�4;0//</23����� =>?@�ABCDEFGH�BDHI?GF@�H>F�JFKL?CF�MFLFI�NOKFFEFGH�PQJMNRS�TBK�U?VFK�WGHFKGFH�NCCF@@�PQUWNRS�T?VFKX'� �#� �������Y�����QJFKL?CFRSZ������[�� ������ ���%������&���#�����'(������%�����#�'(���������������������%�������+����%�� ��������������������Y���!�#������F�HFKE@�\GA�CBGA?H?BG@]�\HH\C>EFGH@]�\GA�JFKL?CF�̂KAFK@�AF@CK?VFA�H>FKF?G]�H>F�QNOKFFEFGHRSZ��=B�H>F�F_HFGH�\G̀�%���� ���������� ���������!��� �*�����������������&���� ����� ��!!�������!����!!�����[����� ����������'!��'�!�*�����EF\@DKFA�TKBE�aD@HBEFKb@�JFK���������������������!��������*������%�������+����%�� ���� �!���!�����  �����������������PH>F�JcFCHKDE�dGHFKcK?@F�QeB?GH�BT�eKF@FGCFR�BK�Qê eRS�\H�H>F�?GA?L?AD\I�C?KCD?H�BK�@FKL?CF�IFLFI]�\GA�\G̀�\ccI?C\VIF����#�� ������  ��#���!(����������������#���������D?H�BK�@FKL?CF�PH>F�QNTTFCHFA�JFKL?CFRSZ�a\c?H\I?fFA�gBKA@�D@FA]�VDH�GBH�#�����#�������&� ��!!����������������� ���������������������������������������1h�794�ij0;/36�kl0�,14�7/08-5/6m���� 7/08-5/��48j-:j.-:-3n�� o/j2�i-</�il�p/63l0/�qrsttuvw�� �9j3/25n�x�,0j</�y/:jn�zpl{2|30-}~�� ��-33/0�x�,0j</�y/:jn��j0-j3-l2�� ��j5�/3��9l66�,0j</�9l66�� x�+�#����+�#���������������(�	������� ��*������������ �� ��� �� ��� �� ���	��� ����11h��0-l0-3n��:j66-k-5j3-l2m����N�QJFKL?CF��?@KDcH?BGR�?@�AFT?GFA�\@�\G�BDH\OF]�#� ��%����&���� ������#����#�����&���������������+��!�#�#��� ��%����&��������������� �*���������'�!��(�������%�������+����%�� �����*������'�����Y������� ������#������������*���������������aD@HBEFKb@�AFA?C\HFA�\CCF@@�cBKH�\H�H>F�JcFCHKDE�dGHFKcK?@F�GFHgBK����'�����Y����������������*������������*�������������%�������+����%�� �����*������'���[������������� ��%�����%����#�'���� �*������ ��������%��� ������������� ��%�����D@?GO�JcFCHKDE�dGHFKcK?@Fb@�HKBDVIF�H?C�FH?GO�@̀@HFE�V̀�CBGH\CH?GO�aD@HBEFK�a\KF]�JcFCHKDE�+����%�� �������*!�#�� ������%����� ��������'!��������&��%�������+����%�� ����!�#��� ������������������� ��������#&���#��� ��������!�� � ������������������� �������[������������� ��%�������# �*���������������#����������� �'������ ����#������QJFKL?CF��FOK\A\H?BGR�EF\G@�\�AFOK\A\H?BG�BT�H>F�JFKL?CF�H>\H�?@�GBH�\�JFKL?CF��?@KDcH?BG�BK�\�KF@DIH�BT�\G�d_CIDAFA��� ��%����&� ����� ����!��������������������������������������[����� �����������(�����������!�(&������������������!�(����������&��������������������  �����Qd_CIDAFA��?@KDcH?BG@R�EF\G@�P?S�cI\GGFA�BDH\OF@]�P??S�KBDH?GF�BK�DKOFGH�E\?GHFG\GCF]�P???S�H?EF�g>FG�JcFCHKDE�dGHFKcK?@F�?@�DG\VIF�HB�O\?G�\CCF@@�HB�aD@HBEFKb@�JFKL?CF�MBC\H?BG]�?T�GFCF@@\K̀]�P?LS�@FKL?CF�?@@DF@�\K?@?GO�TKBE�\CH@�������  ��� ������ ����K�BK�aD@HBEFKb@�KFcKF@FGH\H?LF@�BK�\OFGH@]�PLS�aD@HBEFK�F�D?cEFGH�T\?IDKF@]�PL?S�aD@HBEFK�?@�����%��%���#������!�� �������������������� ����&���#�Y�������������)�����+���� �������� �



��

� ���������	
	�	��� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� ���������������	
���������������������� ���!!�"���� �"� ����#��$����!!�%��#��� &�%���������#� ������ ���������!�'!������!!����� �����������#������!� %��# ���(����(��"� �������� ���(��%%!(����')��������������*��������������������

�%�������+����%�� ��*�!!��!�  ��(���������%��'!�� �� ���!!�* ,��
���������������---.�/012340�52637683739:����;<=>?@A=�B?C@DCE@D@FGH�@I�ACDAJDCF=K�CI�FL=�FMFCD�NJOE=>�MP�O@NJF=I�@N�C�ACD=NKC>�OMNFL�D=II�FL=�NJOE=>�MP�O@NJF=I�FLCF������������������ �������!�'!��#�=�FM�C�Q>@M>@FG�R�SJFCT=�U;VMWNF@O=HXY�K@?@K=K�EG�FL=�FMFCD�NJOE=>�MP�O@NJF=I�@N�C���!��#���������������Z�����!!�*������'!��������� ��[��%!� ��������%�������������������������!�'�!��(����� !���#������������ ����\�*��������������]]�]]̂ �������������!�'�!��(�Z�����,����_0140̀96a0�8:�b6:c�_01�dè9f��ge967�d3̀h90c�i�dè9f��bej̀ 93k0�d3̀h90c��]]�]]̂ �����l	�\�( �� mm&nm��� m����]]�]]̂ �����l��\�( �� ml&����� m�l��]]�]]̂ ������]�\�( �� m	&
n��� m����]]�]]̂ ������o�\�( �� m�&l���� m������-p.�qrst�uvwr�xy�zr{xy|r�}~quuz������Z����ZZ"���� ������������������(�	������� �� ����������������������� �����������(�	������� �#����������!��#�����������!��!���#�� ���������!������!��������������������� ��%�������+����%�� ������� ����������������������!!�*������������(�	���������������!��#���������#���#�#�'(���������� %��#�������'����������'!�������� �����������(�	������� ��%���#�#������������!��#����������������������������������ZZ"�%�����!��#���������� ���!��!���#�� ���!!�* ,�����hkh769320�70̀a9f�e��93k0�9e�10c9e10�_13e139:����h96a0�c���01��-5�/012340����ge967�̀hk801�e��_13e139:����h96a0�91eh870�934�09c��01��-5�/012340������p.��690̀4:�i��16k0�b076:����������(����������\�!�(�� �����������������#���%����*����#�!�(&���� ���#�����(��������� �#����������!��#��������&���!�  ���� ��������� �����%�  �'!��� ����� �!��������+[�!�#�#�\� ��%����&�����#������!(�#�������������� � ������������������!(�%�����������!���!�����������#�!�(�����������������������Z�������#���%�#�!�(�� ��[%��  �#������!!� ����# ��� �������� �

�_13e139:�� ���1390136������������(�	�� �CAL�C�;Q>@M>@FG�R�SJFCT=H����� ��������\� ��%������� �!��������������!�!�  �������������������� ��������\����#�������������%�����*������� ������� ����'!������ ����������������#�� �%��%���#������!�� �������������#������� ���������������(���� �� ��������\����#������*������� ������� ��'!������ ����������������#�� �����%��%���#������!�� �������������#������� ��������������(�l�� �� �� �������%��'!��������#�� �������%����������������������� �� ���!�������������� %����������!��(������������������(���



��

� ���������	
	�	��� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� ���������������	
���������������������� ���!!�"���� �"� ����#��$����!!�%��#��� &�%���������#� ������ ���������!�'!������!!����� �����������#������!� %��# ���(����(��"� �������� ���(��%%!(����')��������������*��������������������

�������(�� ���!��!���#�� ���!!�* +���� ��,-./012345-6/�7/8-2�9��:;6�<=�.>/�5<;0?.5@A�?/8-2�6/-B;5/6/0.B�=<5�-0�4CD�:/5E@1/��F<.-8�G�<=�6/-B;5/6/0.B�=<5�-0�4CD�:/5E@1/�����HCI� J-1K/.�,<BB�3�45-6/�,<BB�L-.@<������M�����  ������������  �"������ �#�����#�� �����%������������������ �������������� ����  ��!!(��������#����%���#������������!������ ���������� �����������!��#��������&��N��%��*�������(�%��M������������!�  �� ������� �!��������ON�!�#�#�P� ��%�������Q���%������������!��!������� �'� �#��������� �������������� �����#�����������*��M�������������%�������#��������#���������*��M�#� ���������%�����������M�����  �R���������  �"������ ���!��!���#�� ���!!�* +���� J-1K/.�,<BB�3�45-6/�,<BB�STU�� 9�� VWW�STU�X�� 45-6/B�L/1/@E/?�STU�������HCCI� Y@../5�3�45-6/�7/8-2�H-5@-.@<0����Z���������������P�!�(�[���������� �#�����#�� ������������������#�!�(������*����� ������������� �������������� �����#�\���]*�(̂�����������*��M�������������%�������#��������#���������*��M�#� ���������%��������%�������O����%�� ����� ��� ��� ��%!�� ����������� �����(��������� �#����������!��#��������&���!�  ���� ��������� �����%�  �'!��� ����� �!��������ON�!�#�#�P� ��%����&���#�#�������� �������������#�!�(�'��*������� ������������� �*����������� ��%!�� �����Q��������!(�Z������R�������P�!�(�[���������� ���!��!���#�� �����������������!!��������������#�!�(�������������� ������� �#������ ������!��#�����������#�� ��N%��  �#������!!� ����# �\� ̂����Z������R�������P�!�(�[���������� ���!��!���#�� ���!!�* +���Y@../5�3�45-6/�7/8-2�H-5@-.@<0�9�������� :;6�<=�.>/�45-6/�7/8-2�H-5@-.@<0�6/-B;5/6/0.B��=<5�-0�4CD�:/5E@1/���������������F<.-8�G�<=�6/-B;5/6/0.B�=<5�-0�4CD�:/5E@1/�����HCCCI�_/.̀<5K�a-@0./0-01/����a-@0./0-01/�_<.@1/b���� ��������#�� ���# �����������������������&��%�������O����%�� ��*�!!�%����������*��M��������������������*��M���%�������� ���#�%��������������������������� ������ � &��%�������O����%�� ��*�!!����#����%�����������������*��M������������&�*�����*�!!�� ��!!(�'�����#����#�*������������������������������*��#�* ���%�������O����%�� ��*�!!�� ����� ���'!�������� ����%����#���#���������������������%%��N����������&�#�������&���#���� ���������(����������������������� �#�����������������������������*��#�* ��������a-@0./0-01/�c@0?<̀ Bb��"���������������������(�'��%�������#�d��#�(�e����#�(�	�������e�f����������!�Q��������� �



��

� ���������	
	�	��� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� ���������������	
��������������������������  �!������!������"��#����  �$��"����%�$���������"������������������ �& ������  �����������������"������ ��$��"����'����'��!��������������'��$$ '����&(��������������)��������������������

�*+,�-./.01.2����3.4516.�74.01829�������������� �$�����������������������������"��������'��� ��"������������ �����������������:���������"�������������������$ ������)���������������������������������"���������%�����������������'���;��������"����;�� ��������������$��"����$������������������ '����������������������������������"�������������������������������& ��&� �)�����'����"������&���$$ ��"�)�  �&�����<��������������������"���������������������$�������=����$������������&�  �����'� ����  �)��������"�����$�������=����$�������>����������"���"������������������"�����;�����������&����&�����"�����$�������=����$�����)�����������'�?@�A�"�'����������� ��"������������)�������������:������)��������"����$�������=����$�����)�  ��B����������������  '��������& ����������������$��"������������"�����;������)�����������'�?@�A�"�'����������$��������������3.4516.�C5D1EDF1E18G��HIJK�LMNI�LO�PIQROSI�TUHLLPVW��XD8.Y6G�Z�[4D/.�\.EDG�]-̂ _Y0841̀a��b188.4�Z�[4D/.�\.EDG�cD41D81̂Y�� ��dD6e.8�X̂22�Z�[4D/.�X̂22�@�f��� g�h�ijklm�n�opqrpqr�ijklm��sf�� �f�� �f�� �f��t�u�������� 	�f�����  �����:���������������� '�������������%���"������������'���;������� '��������"���$�������:������$������������������������"��������������� "�������������$����������������������������"��%�������������  ����������������� �����������������;�� ��'�������"������ '��=B��$���������������&� �)%��������"����"�����&�"����������������  ������������vkmwjxylzm�mj{y�|}~�y��{km��y�lyxy~���|}~���y�wlkx��}wyl�l�myzm�mj{y�|}~�y��{km��y�{�|��{�w�����wi�lym�y�w�wj�|}�������"�����:��������������������"����������"������  �����&������ ������$�����������������7�4̂Y16�d41̂418G����_8D�.29���������������B$�����������"���$�����������?@A���$������������'�	���������)�����������)�������B���"�������?sA�������"�����������������'�	��������)������������?@A��������������� ��"���������%�����������������'����������������������"���������)����������������� ��&� ��'�&'�$����"������� ����������'�?@�A�"�'��)������������������$�������=����$������$����"�"%���)����%������?�A������������'��� '����������������������"����������?��A����������������B�����������������������������������������"���������&'�$����"����)������������������$�������=����$�����)�����������'�?@�A�"�'������������������������������wj�vkmwjxylzm�wylx�}|w�j}�l��iw��������vkmwjxyl�mi|{{�i|�y��|�~���y�wlkx��}wyl�l�my�|{{�|xjk}wm�~ky�|w�wiy�w�����������������������������  ����������$����"�"�&'��$�������=����$�����$������������������������%���"�?��A���������������������������������$����"��������� ����"��B� ����������"'���������������"������� ����"��B� ������ ��&� ��'�����$�������=����$�����������������������'�	�����������"�������������  �����&��� ���& ��������'��""������ ����"������:�����������)�  �&����������������'<���y��hq��~|�m�|�wyl���y�wlkx��}wyl�l�myzm�ly�y��w�j��mk�i��l�wwy}�}jw��y�j��wylx�}|w�j}���



�����������	
�	�����������������	���	�������� !""���#$����"�%�$��#��# &'(')*�	%��+��,��&)-.�/'�	%�/)0��'*	1�,	2�),	%�/)&+3�	&+3�('),�&�),/�	���������	%�/)0��'	4(3�*�	5� &+3�('),�*�	� ��������	6,+3+�('�,�	"�,'+1+/('�	4(3�*�	� ��+'+(�*�	� 7�8�	9('*��!)'�:(��	��(-�������������	&'(0�+�3�	%+*(-���;+0�	<����	=>;"?�@���A	4(/+1+/	;+0�	=>&	B	"(�(�(A .�8�CD('*��E/8(,'�,C/�0�4	!��,�**�	5#C5�@CF#@C@			G����H	I���J��K&'(')*�	6,+3+�(�													�LFLF�F5	5�����@	4M N����,�	7�8�	9('*��													.�8�CD('*��E/8(,'�,C/�0 O�/('+���	%�/)&+3�P�K���	QR���S P�K���T�� I���S���%(�+�	U()38���()38�E/+'2�1-),��'C/�0&�/),+'2	O�����	�0(+�V	!//�)�'	!)'8��'+/('+��	=:���A &��'�	�LFLF�F5	5����5�	4MU+�D���	�LFLF�F5	5����#F	4M	Q���������	G����H	��H	P�K���T��	W�S���ST��X							!//��'���	�LFLF�F5	5����#F	4M						�%�	1-$F- 1�?#(�5?��#�?( # ?���1����##1�						"�0�(�2	:(0��	&��/',)0	��'�,�,+*�Y�	Z��S��	P�K���	QR���S P�K���T�� I���S���QH����	W���R��[	QR���S P���TS I���S���\K���	W���R��[	QR���S P���TS I���S���Y������H���[	W���R��[	QR���S P���TS I���S�����������H	W���R��[	QR���S P���TS I���S������]��	��[	QR���S P���TS I���S���^����SS	QR���S P�K���T�� I���S���_����[	QR���S P�K���T�� I���S���Q�R����	PT����[	QR���S P���TS I���S���S��������	&��' N(*8��L��/,2�'�� �LFLF�F5	5����5�	4M"�,'+1+��	%��+��,�� &�/),+'2	"8�/̀�� �LFLF�F5	5����#F	4MZ�[����	QR���S P���TS I���S���SQ���������	G����H	��H	P�K���T��	W�S���ST��



����������	�����
	��
	��������	
���������	����	����	��	�����	�������	��������������	�������� �	!!�	"#$�������%&	��'	(�	��)����*	('	+,-	./	01/2345	./	6/7	851.,39	-13..59	9/.385:	/1	43:8+/:715:;	<5:813=54	=5+/-	,15	.>5	.51?:	,94	8/943.3/9:	@/1	01/23439A	./	6/7	:78>	9/.385:	,94	43:8+/:715:	5+58.1/938,++6	.>1/7A>	.>5	</87B3A9	:6:.5?;	C+5,:5	15,4	.>5	39@/1?,.3/9	=5+/-	8,15@7++6	,94	.>/1/7A>+6D	,94	3@	6/7	8,9	,885::	.>3:	39@/1?,.3/9	5+58.1/938,++6	./	6/71	:,.3:@,8.3/9	,94	,A155	./	.>3:	E+58.1/938	F58/14	,94	B3A9,.715	<3:8+/:715	GEFB<HD	0+5,:5	8/9@31?	6/71	,A155?59.	=6	:5+58.39A	.>5	8>58IJ(�K	��K�	��	LM	� ���	��	���	�N��������	�����*�	��*	�� �������O	(�P���	�N��Q�� 	L��RSMRTUO	V�����	���	W���$� �	:6:.5?;		XYYZ[\	]̂]X_	̀a]ZXb	c.	,96	.3?5D	6/7	?,6	15d75:.	@1/?	7:	,	0,051	8/06	/@	,96	158/14	01/23454	/1	?,45	,2,3+,=+5	5+58.1/938,++6	./	6/7	=6	7:;	e/7	-3++	>,25	.>5	,=3+3.6	./	4/-9+/,4	,94	0139.	4/87?59.:	-5	:594	./	6/7	.>1/7A>	.>5	</87B3A9	:6:.5?	47139A	,94	3??543,.5+6	,@.51	.>5	:3A939A	:5::3/9	,94D	3@	6/7	5+58.	./	815,.5	,	</87B3A9	,88/79.D	6/7	?,6	,885::	.>5	4/87?59.:	@/1	,	+3?3.54	0513/4	/@	.3?5	G7:7,++6	fg	4,6:H	,@.51	:78>	4/87?59.:	,15	@31:.	:59.	./	6/7;	h@	6/7	-3:>	./	1585325	0,051	8/035:	39	+357	/@	5+58.1/938	4/87?59.:D	6/7	?,6	8+/:5	.>3:	=1/-:51	,94	15d75:.	0,051	8/035:	@1/?	.>5	#���*�� 	����'%	('	P�NN/-39A	.>5	01/854715:	/7.+3954	=5+/-;		iZYjk_̂lZ[\	man_	̀a[bX[Y	h@	6/7	458345	./	1585325	9/.385:	,94	43:8+/:715:	@1/?	7:	5+58.1/938,++6D	6/7	?,6	,.	,96	.3?5	8>,9A5	6/71	?394	,94	.5++	7:	.>,.	.>515,@.51	6/7	-,9.	./	1585325	15d73154	9/.385:	,94	43:8+/:715:	/9+6	39	0,051	@/1?,.;	o/-	6/7	?7:.	39@/1?	7:	/@	6/71	4583:3/9	./	1585325	@7.715	9/.385:	,94	43:8+/:715	39	0,051	@/1?,.	,94	-3.>41,-	6/71	8/9:59.	./	1585325	9/.385:	,94	43:8+/:715:	5+58.1/938,++6	3:	45:813=54	=5+/-;		�a[bXpnX[̀Xb	aq	̀ĵ[\Z[\	man_	rZ[k	h@	6/7	5+58.	./	1585325	15d73154	9/.385:	,94	43:8+/:715:	/9+6	39	0,051	@/1?,.D	3.	-3++	:+/-	.>5	:0554	,.	->38>	-5	8,9	8/?0+5.5	851.,39	:.50:	39	.1,9:,8.3/9:	-3.>	6/7	,94	45+325139A	:512385:	./	6/7	=58,7:5	-5	-3++	9554	@31:.	./	:594	.>5	15d73154	9/.385:	/1	43:8+/:715:	./	6/7	39	0,051	@/1?,.D	,94	.>59	-,3.	79.3+	-5	1585325	=,8I	@1/?	6/7	6/71	,8I9/-+54A?59.	/@	6/71	158530.	/@	:78>	0,051	9/.385:	/1	43:8+/:715:;	s71.>51D	6/7	-3++	9/	+/9A51	=5	,=+5	./	7:5	.>5	</87B3A9	:6:.5?	./	1585325	15d73154	9/.385:	,94	8/9:59.:	5+58.1/938,++6	@1/?	7:	/1	./	:3A9	5+58.1/938,++6	4/87?59.:	@1/?	7:;		�XpnXbYZ[\	]̂]X_	̀a]ZXbt	lZYjk_̂lZ[\	̀a[bX[Yt	̂[k	n]k̂YZ[\	̀a[Ŷ̀ Y	Z[qa_r̂ YZa[	

uvwxyz{|}x	~wx{z�	�|�	�}�|�y�zw	�}�xv{��zw	xzw�yw�	{|�	���������	�������	����zy}w�	��zww�	y{�	���}�	�����|



���������	
����
������
������
�������
����
�� �!
"�"��!
� ���!
"����#���!
���"��
�������
���
��$� ��"
"�"��%
&��'(��)
��������
������
�������
����
�� �!
"�"��!
� ���!
��"�!
"����#���
�� *��
���
���"��
�������%
+(���
�����,�
-�.��/������
������
�������
����
�� �!
"�"��!
� ���!
"����#���
���
���"��
�������%
0��
1���
����$��"��
2�"#
������3
�����
$�����
��
2�"#���2��3
$�����"
2���
*�
��"�� ����
*�
"#�
������3
���"�%


455
6789:;<
=6>
>9<:57<?@;<
A955
B;
<;68
87
C7?
;5;:8@769:=55C
D�����
���
"���
��
�"#��2���
��
�$$�����$�
2�"#
"#�
���$������
���$��*��
#�����!
2�
2���
�������
���$"����$����
"�
���
"#���3#
"#�
E�$�F�3�
���"� 
���
��G�����
��"�$��!
���$�������!
��"#���H�"����!
�$I��2���3� ��"�!
���
�"#��
��$� ��"�
"#�"
���
��G�����
"�
*�
��������
��
 ���
������*��
"�
���
�����3
"#�
$�����
�1
���
����"����#��
2�"#
���%
J�
����$�
"#�
$#��$�
�1
���
�������"��"��
��"
��$�����3
���
��"�$�
��
���$������!
2�
���1��
"�
�������
���
�1
"#�
��G�����
��"�$��
���
���$�������
"�
���
*�
"#�
�� �
 �"#��
���
"�
"#�
�� �
�������
"#�"
���
#���
3����
��%
J#��!
���
$��
��$����
���
"#�
���$�������
���
��"�$��
���$"����$����
��
��
�����
1�� �"
"#���3#
"#�
�����
 ���
��������
���"� %
K1
���
��
��"
�3���
2�"#
"#��
���$���!
������
��"
��
I��2
��
���$��*��
*���2%
������
����
���
"#�
����3���#
�  ����"���
�*���
"#�"
���$��*��
"#�
$����G���$��
�1
����
���$"��3
��"
"�
��$����
��������
�1
"#�
��"�$��
���
���$�������
���$"����$����
1�� 
��%

L7
A98M>@=A
C7?@
:76<;68
A98M
N7:?O9P6
J�
��1�� 
��
"#�"
���
��
���3��
2��#
"�
��$����
1�"���
��"�$��
���
���$�������
��
���$"����$
1�� �"
���
 ��Q
�%
��$����
"�
��3�
�
��$� ��"
1�� 
2�"#��
����
��3���3
�������!
���
��
"#�
��*��G���"
��3�!
����$"
"#�
$#�$IR*�S
����$�"��3
���
2��#
"�
2�"#���2
����
$�����"!
��
���
 ��T
UUV
WXYUZ[
Y\]
̂_]ẀUWa
bcdY[e
f[
]gcUh
cẀ
UW
Y\]
fX̀[
XZ
_ij\
d]ki]_Y
[Xi
gi_Y
_YcY]
[Xid
]gcUhl
1���
�� �!
"�"��!
 �����3
�������!
���
"����#���
�� *��%
m�
��
��"
����
���
�"#��
��1�� �"���
1�� 
���
"�
2�"#���2
$�����"%
J#�
$����G���$��
�1
����
2�"#���2��3
$�����"
1��
������
��$� ��"�
2���
*�
"#�"
"�����$"����
 ��
"�I�
�
���3��
"� �
"�
���$���%

n;o?9@;>
M=@>A=@;
=6>
<7p8A=@;




������������	
	��������������	������	�����������������	
	������
�������������������������������	
	��������������	���������������������	���	�����������	�������������	�	������������	�������	
	��������������	�������� !"#$%&�%�' ()�*��#++�*�$�� �+#�,�, �)#�#&-#�*�$�+&%��$ �(.#�,+�#"#�,) �&�*""'����������������	������
�����������		����	��������������/���������//
0�1�����1�//�2��	���/�������������/���������������	�������	�/�	���	������1��1�//������������
��0��/��	���������������
����������������	�34��0�����5�6������
��������2/������������������������/���������//
�	�������	�34�������
�����������������������������		7����5��6������
��������2/���������/����	�34�������������/������		�1�����
���1�//�2���2/�����������������������	�����������
�����������������������������		��8������0����
������	�����������������������	�������	�/�	���	��9�/�	���/
�����/�����������������	���	���2���������0������	�/������������:�;<=�>?=@�@<�AB�CDE??�@<�FG?�?H?I@E<>JI�E?I<EKG�C>K�GJD>C@FE?GL�;?M<E?�IHJINJ>D�AOPQRBQSTL�UJ@VJ>�@V?�W<IFXJD>�GYG@?Z[�\
�	�/���������������:�;<=�>?=@�@<�AB�CDE??�@<�FG?�?H?I@E<>JI�E?I<EKG�C>K�GJD>C@FE?GL]�Y<F�I<>MJEZ�������̂� _�����������		�������������	�3/���������4����������������������	�/�	���7������̂ _�������������������������	�3/���������4����������������������	�/�	���0����	�������	�������	�3/���������4������������	�/�	���������/��������1�����
���������������0������������������������������		7������̂ �̀��/������/�		�
��������
�a����?E�O<ZZF>JIC@J<>G�Pb?EC@J>D]�ccO�deXb?I@EFZfg�CG���	���2����2���0�
������	����������������9�/�	���/
����������/�������������	��//�������	0���	�/�	���	0��������h�����	0���:��1/��������	0�������������������	���������������������2�����������������������/�2/�����
���2
�������������������������	�����
������/�����	����UJ@V�OVCE@?E�O<ZZF>JIC@J<>G�Pb?EC@J>D]�ccO�deXb?I@EFZfg[�



 
 

 
Administration 

 

 
ITEM 4.12 
 
David Vaughn 
City Manager 
512-715-3208 
Dvaughn@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
 
 

Meeting Date:  July 13, 2021 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss and consider action: A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS, SELECTING 
THE FIRM SEAUX & PIERCE TO BE THE CITY HALL 
PROJECT ARCHITECT AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE A CONTRACT FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR FINAL CITY COUNCIL 
APPROVAL: D. Vaughn 

 
Background: On June 16, 2021, City Council approved the purchase of the 

real property located at 118 E. Polk (the “Bealls Building”) to 
serve as the new City Hall.  On June 19, 2021 we closed on 
the property.  On June 22, 2021, City Council established a 
committee to facilitate the development the Bealls Building 
into a new city hall.  The week of June 28, 2021, the 
committee interviewed the architectural firms: Home Fuse 
Architectural Studio; Haddon & Cowan Architects; and Seaux 
& Pierce Architecture.  The committee’s recommendation is 
the firm Seaux & Pierce Architecture. 

 
Information: State law requires municipalities to select architectural firms 

first and negotiate price after selection. This resolution 
complies with the statute and authorizes the city manager to 
negotiate an agreement with the firm Seaux & Pierce 
Architecture and to present the negotiated agreement to city 
council for final approval.  Examples of the firm’s work may be 
view at their website:  https://www.seauxpierce.com/  

  
Fiscal Impact Approval of this resolution will have no financial impact as city 

council must first approve the negotiated agreement before 
incurring any obligation to pay for services. 

 
Recommendation: Approve and adopt Resolution R2021-38 as presented. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R2021-38 
 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET, 
TEXAS, SELECTING THE FIRM SEAUX & PIERCE TO BE THE CITY 
HALL PROJECT ARCHITECT AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE A CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES FOR FINAL CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL  

 
Whereas, at a special session on June 16, 2021, City Council approved the purchase of 
the real property located at 118 E. Polk (the “Bealls Building”) to serve as the new City 
Hall; and 

 
Whereas, on June 19, 2021, the city closed on the purchase of the Bealls Building; and 

 
Whereas, at a regular session on June 22, 2021, City Council appointed a committee to 
facilitate the development the Bealls Building into a new city hall; and 

 
Whereas, the week of June 28, 2021, the committee interviewed the architectural firms 
Home Fuse Architectural Studio; Haddon & Cowan Architects; and Seaux & Pierce 
Architecture; and 

 
Whereas, after due deliberation the committee recommends the firm Seaux & Pierce 
Architecture to serve as the project architect. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BURNET, TEXAS, THAT:  
 
Section one.  Findings. The recitals to this Resolution are hereby adopted and 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 
 
Section two.  Selection. The firm Seaux & Pierce Architecture, with offices at 1014 
Sailmaster Drive, Austin, Texas is selected to serve as the architect for the city hall 
project. 
 
Section three.  Authorization.  The city manager is hereby authorized and directed to 
negotiate a professional service agreement with the selected firm and to present the 
negotiated agreement to city council for final approval. 
 
Section four.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the 
meeting at which this resolution was passed was open to the public and that public notice 
of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act. 
 
Section five.  Effective Date. That this resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 
passage, and approval as prescribed by law. 
 



 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 13th day of July, 2021.  
       

CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS 
 
  
       

      Crista Goble Bromley, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      
 
 
      
Kelly Dix, City Secretary 


	2021-07-13 Regular Meeting Agenda
	CITY OF BURNET
	CRISTA GOBLE BROMLEY, MAYOR


	Item 1.1 June Development Services Report
	Development Services Monthly Report- June 2021
	Residential Permits 	
	New Residential Permits 	
	Other Residential Permits 	
	Commercial Permits
	Commercial Permits
	Developments 	
	Villages of Westfall  
	Delaware Springs Section 24
	Code Enforcement 
	Code Enforcement Activity
	Questions 	

	Item 2.1 21-06-22 RM Minutes
	Item 3.1 PH Ord. Amendment Chpt. 22 Buildings and Building Regulations
	Public Hearing Brief

	Item 4.1 Ord Amendment Chpt. 98-22 Subdivision Notification & Hearings
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.2 Ord Amendment Boards  Commissions
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.3 Ord Amendment 98-23 Construction Inspection Fee
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.4 Ord Amendment 22 Building Fee
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.5 Airport Advisory Board Appointments
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.6 Historic Board Appoinment
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.6 Historic Board Appointments-Attachment
	Item 4.7  Defeasance Resolution
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.8 Personnel Policy- Military Leave 7-13-2021
	Agenda Item Brief
	Exhibit A
	8.12 MILITARY LEAVE  (Revised 7-13-2021, Effective 9-1-2021, Resolution 2021-**)

	Texas Government Code - GOV'T § 418.004. Definitions - “Disaster” means the occurrence or imminent threat of widespread or severe damage, injury, or loss of life or property resulting from any natural or man-made cause, including fire, flood, earthqua...

	Item 4.9  Transfer of Tax Deduction- PD Building
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.9 Transfer of Tax Deduction- PD Building
	Item 4.10 Financing Use and Sales Tax Agreement
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.11 Spectrum Fiber Contract Renewal
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.11 Spectrum Fiber Contract-attachment
	Item 4.12 Architect Selection
	Agenda Item Brief


